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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
To the Members of KrazyBee Services Private Limited
Opinion

1. We haveaudited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of KrazyBee Services Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statement”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (* the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial Statements in accordance with the standards on auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of ethies’ issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics, We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key audit matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Jjudgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the contex! of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matlers.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Malters are not applicable to the Company as it
is an unlisted company.

Emphasis of Matter

5. Wedraw altention to note 51 of the Statement, which describes the uncerlainty caused by Novel
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic with respect to the Company estimales of Wrillen off Receivables from
Finaneing activity and that such estimates may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this maller,
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

6. The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears lo be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accountin g principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the aceuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finaneial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and lo issue an audilor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit condueted in accordance with SAs will always detecl a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements ean arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in.the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users lakewo e« \
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. /& EaR
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11,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive lo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

12,

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the Central
Governmenl of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Aet, we give in the “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: {}
|'|l-':—\"

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knrﬁ
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; \>
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(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required bylaw have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from
being appointed as a director in lerms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B”, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any malerial foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

For V R ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI IFirm Registration Number: 001239C

Abhinandan Chauhan
Partner

Membership Number: 400175
Place of Signature: Lucknow
Date: Augusl 13, 2021

UDIN: 21400175AAAAHD5270
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 to the Audit report of KrazyBee Services Private limited on
cven date

Re: KrazyBee Services Private Limited (‘the Company’)

(@  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size ofthe Company and the
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

() According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable properties,
included in fixed assets of the company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(ii) The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and
(¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

@iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither granted any loans to
directors including entities in which they are interested nor is any loans and advances given, investments made
and, guarantees, and securitics in terms of provision section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the publie. Accordingl ¥, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of
cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the Company

(vii)(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues incl uding income-
tax, goods & service tax, cess, employees’ state insurance and other statutory dues applicable to it. The Company
is regular in depositing with Provident fund except there are few eases in which company has not deposited the
employee and employer provident fund as company is not able to generate the UAN of the em ployee. The
provisions relating to custom duty, excise duty and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-
lax, goods & service tax, cess, employees’ state insurance and other stat utory dues were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. Except Provident fund where
there are few cases in which company has not deposited the employee and employer provident fund as company
is not able to generate the UAN of the employee. The provisions relating to custom duty, excise duty and value
added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income-tax, goods & service tax,
cess, provident fund and employees’ state insurance which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
The provisions relating to custom duty, excise duty and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(viii) According Lo the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not made any default in{j'
of any oulstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial institution or bank or to governmeh
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to debenture holders during the year, Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the order are complied with by the
company.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has raised money by
way of Equity, debt instruments, External Commercial borrowing and term loans, Acco rding to the information
and explanations given by the management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes
for which the funds were raised., also there is no delay and default in the repayment of the same.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud
by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable
and hence not commented upon.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of
sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to
section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied with
provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the right issue of shares/ fully non-convertible
debentures during the year. According to the information and explanations given by the management, we report
that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised, though idle/surplus
funds which were not required for immediate utilisation were gainfull y invested in liquid assets payable on
demand

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in seetion 192 of

Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is required to obtain registralion under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the requisite registration has been obtained.

For V R ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: oo1259C

Abhinandan Chauhan
Partner

Membership Number: 400175
Place of Signature: Lucknow
Date: August 13, 2020

UDIN: 21400175AAAAHD5270
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Annexure ‘B’

Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act?)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KrazyBee Services Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable finaneial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operaling effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included oblaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and lesting and
evalualing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporling,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

4. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a malerial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

5. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting lo future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

6. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For VR ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 001239C

,—,./,z/,,,///
Abhinandan Chauhan
Partner
Membership Number: 400175
Place of Signature: Lucknow

Date: August 13, 2021
UDIN: 21400175AAAAHDS270
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KRALY!

BEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021
{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5.MNo Particulars Note As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
ASSETS
(1) |Financial assets
{a) |Cash and cash equivalents 41 24,723.27 9,089.17 7,594.89
(b} |Bank balance other than {a) above 4(11) T TE6.92 447,04
() |Derivative financial instruments 5 - 128.89 -
{d} [Trade receivables ] - 1,103.73 1,383.09
{g) |Loans 7 b, 114,48 91,8%2.27 14,104,92
(f] |Investments 8 3,511.25 2,544.15 104.05
{g) [|Other financial assets 9 8,485.06 2,767,14 1,961.76
{2) |Non-financial assets
(@) [Current tax assets (net) 10 654,45 B66, B85 13.53
(b) |Deferred tax assets (net) " 1,469.30 1,264,608 3.9
(c) |Property, plant and equipment 12 113.90 180.79 78.85
(d] [Right of use asset 39 B6,95 120.22 159.15
(e) |intangible assets 13 13.39 24,25 7.8
(f} |Other non-financial assets 14 54,78 123.84 93.50
Total assets 1,03,598.55 1,10,752.89 36,201.56
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) |Financial liabilities
{a) |Trade payables 15
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19.05 23.42 4,04
(11) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,262.02 117.65 78.65
and small enterprises
{b) |Debt securities 16 11,717.74 12,207.14 1,935.465
{c) |Borrowings {(other than debt securities) 17 15,116.74 56,126.77 9,628.96
(d) |Deposits 18 . 100.00 4917
(2] |Other financial liabilities 19 560,01 1,154.56 420,29
(2) |Mon-financial Habilities
{a) |Current tax labilities {net) 20 71,79 - +
b} |Provisions 21 78.08 30.18 15.71
(g} |Other non-financial liabilities 22 382.28 1,103.84 452,64
(3) |EQUITY
{a) |Equity share capital 3 107.02 75.63 65.65
{b) [Other equity 24 53,641.81 19,613.70 22,850.80
Total liabilities and equity 1,03,598.55 1,10,752.89 36,201.56
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For V.R. ASS0OCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo; 001239C

N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KrazyBee Services Private Limited

e, (e

ABHINANDAN CHAUHAMN o MADHUSUDAN
Partner EKAMBARAM
Membership No: 400175 Director
DIN: 07442577
Place:Lucknow
Date: August 13, 2021 Place; Bengaluru
Date: Aygust 13, 2021
PALLAV] CINGARAJU
Company Secretary

Membership Mo: AS6733

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 13, 2021

KARTHIKEYAN
KRISHNASWAMY
Director

DIM; 07449376

Place: Bengalury
Date: August 13, 2021

-




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5.Mo Particulars MNote| Year ended 31 March | Year ended 31 March
2021 2020
Revenue from operations
{1} | Interest income 25 14,374.28 21,4331.58
{ii}) | Fees and commission income 26 B,075.76 18,464,76
{iif) | Met gain/(loss) on fair value changes 7 {110.89) 118.61
1 | Total revenue from operations 22,339.15 40,016.95
2 | Other income 28 38,40 238.03
3 | Total income (1+2) 12,377.55 40,254.98
Expenses
{f} | Finance costs 9 6,104.06 71.715.64
(i) | Fees and commission expense i0 1,105.92 3,463.80
(1il) | Impairment on financial instruments N 9.666.61 12,157.19
(v} | Employee benefits expenses k¥ 1,018.75 870.86
{v) | Depreciation and amartization expense 13 211.83 184,08
(vi) | Other expenses 34 hd1. 18 1,336.37
4 | Total expenses 18,748.35 35,827.94
5 [ Profit before tax (3-4) 3,629.20 4,427.04
Tax expense: 35
(1) Current tax 1,028.15 2,221.19
(2} Deferred tax (credit) / charge {201.09) i1,032.89)
(3) Tax in respect of earlier years - 61.79
6 | Total tax expense 827.06 1,250.09
7 | Profit for the year (5-6) 2,802.14 3,176.95
8 | Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {14.02) 4,70
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans
(if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 3.53 (1.18)
Other comprehensive income (10.49) 1.52
9 | Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) 2,791.65 3,180.47
10} Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted {INR) 36 367.98 431.24
(Mominal value per share - INR 10}
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per pur report of even date
For V.R. ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration NMo: 001239C

2

ABHINANDAN CHAUHAN MADHUSUDAN
Partner EKAMBARAM
Membership No: 400175 Director
DIN: 07442577
Place: Bengaluru
Date: ﬁ?ﬂ, 021
PALLAVI Lﬂ
Place: Lucknow Company Secretary

Date: August 13, 2021

Membership No; AS6733

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 13, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cazh flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al arnowunts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Yoar ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,629,20 4,427.04
Adjustments for:
Interest Income (13,897.98) 21,372.97)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 78.56 74,52
Depreciation on ROU asset 133,27 109.56
Interest income from investments {476.30) {&0.61)
Gain on sale of investments (18,00} {23.72)
Impairment on linanclal instruments G, 666,61 22,157,19
Share based payment expense 206,16 99.17
Finance cost b,455,.85 7.181.03
Het gain on falr value changes 128.89 {%4.89)
Unrealized foredgn exchange loss 92.78 639.28
Interest income on security deposits (7.09) 15.31)
Interest on lease liahility 14,45 .
Cash inflow from interest on loans 10,887.73 10,592.50
Cash outflow towards finance cost 16,575, 70) 16,995.68)
Cash generated from operation before working capital changes 10,328.43 26,859.19
Working capital changes
Decrease f{increase) in loans 10,557.11 {BB,578.41)
Decrease in trade recetvables 1,103.73 279.36
Increase in other financial assets {5,729.00) (779.12)
Decrease/ (increase) in other non financial assets 69,06 {#40,59)
Increase in trade payables 1,140.00 58.38
Increase in Provisions 33.88 19.17
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial Liabilities (550.04) 690,44
Increase/ {decrease) in other nan fnancial Habilities (197.24) 5.54
Cash generated from/ {used in) operations 16,755.93 (61,486.03)
Income tax paid (net of refunds) 1302.96) (2,936.10)
et cash flows generated from / (used In) operating activities (4) 26,452.97 (64,422.33)
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (0LE1) (172.90)
Purchase of mutual funds {3,499.81) {2,500.00)
Redemption of investment in mutual find 2,509.53 14.87
Redemption of investment in corporate band 41,10 58.75
Het proceeds from fixed deposits 415.20 {339.88)
Interest received on investments 494,47 39.66
Net cash flow from / {used In) investing activities (B) (40.24) (2,889.51)
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of equity share capital {Including securities premium) 21,062.70 3,4931.24
Debt securities isued/ (repaid) (net) (10,489,.40) 20,271.49
Barrowings other than debt securities fsswed/ (repaid)(net} (21,102.82) 45 824,54
Deposits repaid (100.00) {B49.17)
Payment towards lease liabilities (149,11} {133.99)
Het cash flow fram/ (used in) financing activities (€) (10,778.63) 68, 806,11
Met increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 15,634.10 1,494.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5.089.17 7,5%4,89
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24,723.27 9,089.17
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, —
A5 per our report of even date
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KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
fAmount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 General information
Krazybee Services Private Limited (the "Company”) is a private limited company domiciled in India and was incorporated on March 16, 2016, under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India. Its registered and principal office of business is located at 3™ Floor, No, 128/9,
Maruthi Sapphire, HAL Afrport Road, Murgesh Palya, Bangalore, Karnataka - 560017, The Company is a non-banking finance company {'NBFC')
registered with the Reserve Bank of india (*RBI") with effect from May 25, 2017, with Registration Mo. N-02.00281. The Company became non-
deposit taking systematically important non-banking financial company as on guarter ended June 30, 2019, The Company s engaged in the
business of consumer lending.

2 Significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies adopted by the company are as under:

21

{a)

(b

ic)

1.2

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in the Division 1l of Schedule Il of the Act, The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS. Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs,

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. (As Amended from time ta time)

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the
section 133 of the Act, read with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAP), These financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2021 are the first set of financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer note 2.19 for an
explanation of how the Company has adopted Ind AS.

The Company is regulated by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'), RBI periodically fssues/amends directions, regulations and/or guidance
{collectively “Regulatory Framework™) covering various aspects of the operation of the Company, including those relating to accounting
for certain types of transactions. The Regulatory Framewark contains specific instructions that need to be followed by the Company in
preparing its financial statements,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on August
13 2021.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the following material items

that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:-

i) Certain financial assets and liabilitles measured at fair value (refer accounting palicy on financial instruments)
ii} Share based payment transactions

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimate and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year
and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial
statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis,
Revisions to accounting estimates, If any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected,
Refer Note 2.17 for detailed discussion on estimates and judgments,

Praperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date fs classified as capital
advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-

progress’.




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMWITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives of assets are as follows:

Praperty, plant and equipment

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Dffice Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period, which corresponds with the useful lives of the assets,

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition, Deprectation on
sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in Statement of Profit and
Loss under 'Other Income',

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
as appropriate.

1.3 Other intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amartization.
The Company amortized intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method, The estimated useful lives of
intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets
Computer sof tware 3 years

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization peried and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

2.4 Foreign currency transactions

{a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency'), The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR}, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

{b) Transactions and balances
On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in
foreign exchange rate between the transaction date and settlement date are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and
the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Nor-monetary ftems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates al the
dates of the initial transactions.

2.5 Fair value measurement
The Compary measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, at fair value at each balance sheet date,
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability accessible to the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair value measurement as 2 whole:

Level 1 — Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or
labilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are
sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and
exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date

=
s
)




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Amount in INR Lakhs, uniess atherwise stated)

2.6

.7

Level 2 — Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable
market data available over the entire peried of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in nactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as
interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or
location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to ftems that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such
adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
nstruments as Level 3

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair value measurement is unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

Revenue recognition

The effective interest rate method

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, The
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees
and costs that are an fntegral part of the EIR, The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest
rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and
charges)If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is
booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in
interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss,

Interest income

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired
assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired , the company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate
to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the company reverts to
caleulating interest income on a gross basis,

Revenue from contracts with customers:

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a single comprehensive model of
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract{s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates
enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met,

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer
a good or service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Step 4: Mlocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has mare than one performance
obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
cansideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation,

Step 5: Recognise revenue when the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Fees and commission income
Income from processing fees chargeable to the platforms on the basis of disbursements made is recognized on the completion of loan
processing activity.,

Business support services
Income from business support services is recognized on a accrual basis over the term of the agreement.

Dividend income

Income from shares and mutual fund units shall be taken into account on accrual basis when Company's right to receive: payment 15
established,

-~




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes farming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amaount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(a)

{b)

(c)

2.9

2.10

Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the

Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities, in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) prescribed therein. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either Lo settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements, Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset s
realised or the deferred income tax lability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible tempaorary differences and unused tax lasses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses,

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation, It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offsel current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income ar directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Goods and services tax /value added taxes pald on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, In which case, the tax paid is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable,

Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for premises. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
Inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (if) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the
assel.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of -use asset (“ROLU") and a corresponding lease liability for
all lease arrangements in which it s a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases., For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. The ROU asset is depreciated using the straight line method from the date of initial application over the
shorter of useful life of ROU asset or lease term. ROU asset are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their
carrying amount may not be recoverable, Impairment loss, if any will be recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as fina neing
cash flows

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non financial
assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recaverable amount and the amount of impairment
loss.

An impairment loss 15 calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of
recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recagnised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpase of impairment
testing, assets are g ogéthe




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2.1

2.13

(@)
(1) (a}

i) (b}

(1 e

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Proviglons are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it fs probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognized as a finance cost.

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs
to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognized as part of the cost of the particular asset, The cash flows are
discounted at a current pre-lax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning
are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or
deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
anly by the cccurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obiigation that arises from past events where 1t i efther not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft with
an ariginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in banks and short-term depasits net
of bank overdraft.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

anather entity.

Financial assets

Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date,
l.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provistons of the instrument. This includes regular way trades:
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by reaulation or
convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers' account. The Company recognises
dedit securities and borrowings when funds reach the Company,

Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit ar
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit and loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the falr value is based on a valuation
technigue using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and
fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not
abservable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recagnised in profit or loss when the
inputs become observable, or when the Instrument s derecognised,




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021
{Amaunt fn INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i)

(i)

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or

b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; ar

c) at fair value through profit or loss,

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate methad (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.
When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to
Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses), Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
fncome using the effective interest rate method,

Fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criterta for amortized cost or FVOC! are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.,

Reclossification within es of fina els

A change in the business model would lead to a prospective re-classification of the financial asset and accordingly the measurement
principles applicable to the new classification will be applied. During the current financial year and previous accounting period there was
no change in the business model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss {ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at amortized cost .

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. If the credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL s used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of
the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts
to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defaull events over the expected life of a financlal instrument.
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to cansider all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc,) over the expected life of
the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then
the entity s required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument,

With the view of the short term nature of the loans, Company is not performing discounting on the loans.

The cash flows from collateral will be considered, only if a loan is guaranteed by a third party as part of its contractual tenms with the
customers and it carry an allowance for expected credit loss based on the combined credit risk |.e., by reflecting the effect of the
guarantee in the measurement of losses expected on default. A key criteria of what does not canstitute part of contractual terms is that
if'a loan is guaranteed but the guarantee would not pass to the new holder if the (oan is transferred. The third party guarantees which
does not form part of the contractual terms with the customers are treated as contingent asset and recognized separately as
reimbursement income only when it is virtually certain that recovery will be made.,

ECL impairment loss allowance {(or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income fexpense in the statement of profit and
loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

The Company has decided to use probability weights for each scenario based on management expert judgement. The probability weights
should be reviewed periodically and amended based on the forward-looking information (i.e. a period of reduced growth forecasts may
result in putting more weightage on a worst case scenario or in future once more data §s available the Company can use statistical
approach etc. ). Any change to the probability weighting will need to be approved by the Risk Management Committee.
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2.14
(a)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a} the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b} retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to ane or more reciplents,

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset is transferred, Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized,

Write-off

Impaired lcans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance for loan impairment on completion of the Company’s
internal processes and when the Company concludes that there s no longer any realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan,
For loans that are individually assessed for impairment, the timing of write off is determined on a case by case basis. A write-off
constitutes a de-recognition event. The Company has a right to apply enforcement activities to recaver such written off financial assets.
Subsequent recoverfes of amounts previously written off are credited to the ncome statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial récognition and measurement

Financlal liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortized cost,
as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financlal liabilities at falr value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initfal recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, Gains
and |osses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the labilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process. Amortized cost fs calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially maodified, such an exchange or macdification s treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a companent of a hybrid {combined) instrument that also includes 4 non-derivative host contract - with the
effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative, Derivatives embedded in
all other host contract are separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit o loss, Embedded derivatives closely related
to the host contracts are not separated,

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount s reported fn the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an Intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and seltle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Employee Benefits

Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the year in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the year
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid whe 3bilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
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Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund; Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart
from the eontributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Lontribution towards employees’ state insurance scheme is made to the regulatory authorities,
where the Company has no further obdigations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not
carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basts which are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the ‘Gratuity Plan”) cavering eligible employees in accordance with
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
Incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary. The Compary's liability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the
other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Compensated absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the
end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The abligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year
end,

Accurnulated compensated absences, which are expected Lo be availed or encashed beyond 12 manths from the end of the year end are
treated as other lang term employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarlally determined {using the Projected Unit Credit method)
at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity share capital.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the
net profit or loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year, The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all the years presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other
than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management Lo make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year end date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared,
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur,

Share-based payments

Estimating falr value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which fs
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the
valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Nate 38,

Taxes

Deferred lax assels are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits and leave encashment)

The cost of the defined benefit plans such as gratuity and leave encashment are determined using actuarfal valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each year end,

The principal assumptions are the discount and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based wpon the market yields available on
government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis, For details refer Note 37.

Useful life and expected residual value of assets

Depreciation and amortisation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual

value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the
asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with
similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology,

Leases
The determination of lease term for lease contracts in which the Company is a lessee, including whether the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise lessee options. The determination of the incremental borrowing rate used ta measure lease liabflities.

Judgements

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the Solely payments of principal and Interest (SPPI Jand the
business model test . The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how Company's financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence incl wding how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how
these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amartised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring s part of the
Comparny's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the
classification of those assets,

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly cbservable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using
a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates
include considerations of liquidity and model inputs refated to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different
interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and

charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as
well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument,

Impairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances,

The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of complex madels with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of
variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates
include:

- The Company’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades

- The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should
lxe measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

- Development of ECL madels, including the various farmulas and the choice of inputs

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral
values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconamic scenarios and their probability welghtings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL
models

It hias been the Compliny's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

e
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Provisions and other contingent labilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent to its
operations. As a resull, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ardinary course
of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to
be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or
probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent Liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a number of
factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judzement is required
to conclude on these estimates.

Standards (including amendments) issued but not yet effective

On 18 June 2021, the Ministry of Carporate Affairs notiffed certain amendments to Ind AS that are effective from 01 April 2021. The
amendments made were to Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, While the management is evaluating the effect of the changes on the financial
statements, it does not currently believe that they will have any significant impact.

First-time adoption of Ind-AS

These financial statements are the first set of Ind AS financial statements prepared by the Company. Accordingly, the Company has
prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for year ending on 31 March 2021, together with the comparative
year data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020, as described in the significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial
statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 01 April 2019, being the Company's date of transition to Ind AS.
This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the
balance sheet as at 1 April 2019 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020,

Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS

Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective
application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly applied the following exemptions,

Deemed cost

Since there s no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value for all of its property,
plant and equipment as recognized in its Indian GAAP financial statements as its deemed cost at the date of transition after making
adjustments for de-cammissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38, Intangible
Assets and investment properties. Accordingly the management has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and intangible assets at their Indian GAAP carrying value.

The Company has seflected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 102 to the equity instruments that got vested before the transition
date.

The Company has applied the Ind AS 116, Leases, to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 in accordance with paragraph D9B,
Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate at the date of transition to Ind AS. The ROU asset is measured at an amount equal to the ease liability, adjusted to the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date of
transition,

The Company has made use af the fallowing practical expedients:
The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment.
The Company excluded the initial direct cost from measurement of the ROL asset.

Mandatory exemption on first-time adoption of Ind AS
Estimates
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same
date in accordance with Indian GAAP {after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective
evidence that those estimates were in error,
Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2019 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with Indian GAAP. The
Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under Indian
GAAP;
(i) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model,
(11) Effective 1nterest/ra§e used fn cab;q\atim of security deposit.
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Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A first-time adopter should apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively to transactions
occurring on or after the date of transition. Therefore, if a first-lime adopter derecognized non-derivative financial assets or non-
derivative financial liabilities under its Indian GAAP as a result of a transaction that occurred before the date of transition, it should not
recognize those financial assets and liabilities under Ind AS (unless they gualify for recognition as a result of a later transaction or
event). A first-time adopter that wants to apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109,Financial Instruments, retrospectively from
a date of the entity's choosing may only do so, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109,Financial Instruments, to
financial assets and financial liabilities derecognized as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for
those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognize pravisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial
assets (investment in debt instruments) on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Operating segments

The operating seaments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM ) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the
Company. The Company is engaged in the business of consumer lending in India which is considered to be the anly reportable segment.

Statement of cash flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from
operaling activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

I. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;

fi. nan-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed profits
of associates and joint ventures; and

jii, all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows,

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for
general use as on the date of Balance Sheet

Dividend payable

Intertm dividend declared to equity shareholders, if any, is recognised as liability in the period in which the said dividend has been
declared by the Directors. Final dividend declared, if any, is recognised in the period in which the said dividend has been approved by
the Shareholders.
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2.23

2.24

Modification of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or
otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amaunt and/or timing of
the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to
maximise collection and minimise the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and the
borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity
of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash
flows due (principal and interest forgiveness). Such accounts are classitied as stage 3 immediately upon such modification in the terms of
the contract.

Mot all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of obligors that are not overdue is not
considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to deterioration in staging.

Derivative financial instrument and hedge accounting
The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures Lo interest rate and foreign currency. In order to manage
particular risks, the Company applies hedge accounting for transactions that meet specified criteria.

At the Inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Compary
wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged
item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the
hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged ftem’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they
were designated.

Cash flow hedge:

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction
and could affect profit or loss.

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on

the hedging instrument fs initially recognised directly in OCI within equity (cash flow hedge reserve],

The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in net gain/loss on fair value changes in
the profit and loss statement,

When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profit and loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is
recorded in the corresponding income or expense line of the statement of profit and loss. When the farecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a nen-financial Liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in OCI are
reversed and included in the initial cost of the asset or lability,

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets

the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in OCI at that time

re-mains in OCI and is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OC| is immediately
transferred to the statement of profit and loss.
The Company did not have any fair value hedges.
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2.25

2.26

2,27

De-recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future ecanomic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. An
intangible asset fs derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

Share based payment transaction

The stock options of the Parent Company is granted to employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Options Schemes, are measured at
the fair value of the options at the grant date. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of options for
which the related service vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based
on the number of options that do meet the related service vesting conditions at the vesting date. If a grant lapses after the vesting
period, the cumulative discount recognised as an expense in respect of such grant is transferred Lo the general reserve within other
equity, which a free reserve in nature,

Financial guarantees

As issuer of financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within ‘other liabilities') at fair value, being the premium
received. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amaunt recognised less cumulative amartisation.

Amy increase in the lability relating to financial guarantees s recorded in the statement of profit and loss in credit loss expense. The
premium recefved s recognised in the statement of profit and loss in net fees and commission income on a straight line basis over the

life of the guarantee

As beneficiary of financial guarantees
The Company avails financial guarantees from its parent and fellow subsidiaries towards borrowings availed from various lenders, The

Company does not account for such financial guarantees received in the capacity of beneficiary,
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3 Reconciliations

The following reconciliations provides the effect of transition to Ind AS from indian GAAP i sceardance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting

Standards:

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance ather than (a) abowe
Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

Other financial assers

Hon-financhal assets

Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax asset (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use ssset

Other ntangible assets

Other non-financial assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Financial labllities

Trade payables

Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debt securitios)
Deposits

Other financial labilities

Hon-financial liabitities
Provisions
Other non-financial liebilities

EQUITY
Equity share capital
Other equity

Hotes to first-time

Saation Indian GAAP® Adjustments Ind AS
7,994.89 759489
44704 A47.04
1,383.09 . 1.383.09
hiti) 14,507.32 {40240 24,104.97
104,05 . 104.05
) 1,969.26 (7.51) 1,961.76
16,005, 65 (405.91) 35,595.74
13.53 - 13.53
34.61 194,36 132.97
78.85 . 7885
hivilt) 0.00 159,15 159,15
.8 . 7.8
93,50 . 93.50
248.30 357.51 605,81

36,253.55 [52.40) 36,101 55
B2.69 - B2.69
i) 2,000.00 [64.35] 1,935.65
hiiy 9,747.17 (118.21) 9,620.96
749.17 : 149.17
hiviii) 61,14 159.15 420.29
12,840.17 123.41) 12,816.73
1.1 15.71
452.63 - 452.64
468.34 458.35
15,65 . 65,65
22.879.79 (28.59) 22,8%0.40
22,945.44 (28.59) 32,916.45
386,251.96 i52.40) 36,201.56




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

fAmait in INR Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Reconciliations

{b) Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2020

ASSETS
{1} Financial assets
(@) Cash and cash equivalents

(b}  Bank balance other than {a) above

fc) Derivative financial instruments
(dy  Trade receivables

{o ] Loans

{f}  Inwestments

{g)  Other financial assets

{2) MHon-financlal assets

{a) Current tax assets (net)

(b)  Deferred tax asset (net)

ic)  Property, plant and equipment
{d) Right of use asset

(€] Other intangible assets

() Other non-financial assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

{1} Financial liabilities

(a)  Trade payabiles
(b} Debt securities

(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities)

(d) Deposits
fe)  Dther financial liabilities

{2}  Mon-financial liabilities
{a) Provisions
(k]  Other non-financial liabilities

{3) EQUITY
(a)  Equity share capital
(b} Other equity

Total equity

Total Habilities and equity

Hotes Lo first-time

adaption

niii)
hiviy
hiiii)

hiwiid)

i)
hify

Twii)

Iredian GAAP* Adjustments Inel AS
9,089.17 9,089.17
786,92 T86.92
128.89 128.89
1,103.73 ' 1,103,731
94,550,42 (2,698.14) o1, 852 17
2,541,725 .90 2,544,15
1,779.59 (12.45) 1,767.14
1,10,%79.97 (2,707.69) 1,08,272.27
b66.85 - b6 85
79.06 1,185.61 1,264.68
180,79 - 180.79

- 720,21 120.22

4,25 - 4.25
123,84 - 123.84
1,074.79 1,405.84 1,4B0.63
1,12,054.76 {1,301.8%5) 1,10,752.90
141.07 - 141.07

22, 190,84 {183.70) 72,307.14
56,516.67 (389.90) 56,126.77
100.00 - 100.00
1,134.95 176 1,354.56
B0, 255.53 [355.99) 79,029.54
30.18 - 30,18
1,103.84 1,103.84
1,134.00 1,134.02
75.63 - 75.63
30,559.58 {945.88) 29,613.70
30,635.21 (945, 88) 19,689.33
1,12,054.76 (1,301.87) 1,10,752.89

* The Indian GAAP figures have been reclassified o conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpete of this note,

5 i




KRATYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIKITED

Hotes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Reconciliations

(€} Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 1020

Revenue from operations
[f) Interest income
(1) Fees and commission income
(1§} Het gain on fair value changes

{I} Total revenus from operations
() Other ncome

() Total income {1411}

Exponses
{i) Finance costs
() Fees and commission expense
(i} Impairment on financial instruments
{iv} Employee benefits expenses
v} Depreciation and amortization expense
(v} Others expenses

{I¥) Total expenses (IV)
(¥} Profit Before tax (I -1V}
(W1} Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
{3) Tax in respect of earlier years
(VIl} Profit for the year (V-VI)

(Vill} Other comprehensive income

(i) tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Gain/Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans

{ii} Income tax relating to ibems that will not be reclassified to profit or lows

Other comprehensive income (A + B)

{1X) Total comprehensive income far the year (VII+VII)

Hotes to
fhrst-time Indian GAAR* Adjustments ind AS
adoption

hiiii) 21,428,27 53 11,433.58
18,464, 76 . 18,464,76

i} 1571 .90 118.61
40,008.74 821 40,016.95

238.00 238,01

40,246,77 B.21 40,254, 98

i) 6,779,35 {938.29) 7,715.64
1,463.80 - 3,463.80

i) 19,961.45 2,295.74 22,757.19
) Th4, 0% 101.87 HY0.86
h{vifl} 74.52 109.56 184,08
hivili}y 2,765.60 1,429.23 1,336.37

33,611.1 3,002.11 35,827.94

6,435.06 2,993.90 4,427.04

2,119 - 2,221.19

(44.45) (988,44} (1,032.89)

£1.79 - 61.79

1,238.53 (98B, 44) 1,250.00

4,196,531 1,005.46 3,176,95

4,70 4,70

{1.18) {1.18)

- 3, 3.52

4,196.53 2,008.58 3,180.47

* The Indian GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind A5 presentation requirements for the purpose of this note,




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Mates forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Reconciliations
{d) Reconcilistion of total equity as at 31 March 2020 and 01 April 2019

Shareholder’s equity as per Indian GAAP sudited financial statements

Adjustment
1 EIR impact of boerowings
1 Expected credit loss provisioning
3 EIR Impact of security deposit
4 Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds
5 Leases
6 Deferred tax impact on above ftems

Tatal adjustments
Shareholder's equity as per ind AS

(e} Reconcillation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020

Profit as per Indian GAAP
Adjustment
1 EIR impact of barrowings
1 lmpact on account of expected credit loss model
3 BIR mpact of security deposit
4 ESOP expenditure
5 Remeasurement of igains)/losses on defined benefit plans recognized in GCI
7 Fair valuation of Investment in mutual funds
& Depreclation of right of use of asset
9 Rent pald
10 Interest on lease llabilities
11 Deferred tax impact on above (tems
Total

Profit as per Ind AS

(f} Impact of ind AS adoption on cash flow statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Het cash flow from operating activities
Het cash flow from investing activities
Het cash flow from financing activities

Het increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 29
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2020

Hotes to first-time As at Ax at
adoption 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
30,635.20 22,945, 44
hii) 573.60 182.56
hiily {2,498.14) {402.40)
hiiii) {12.44) (7.51)
hwif) 2.50 :
i} 159 .
1,185.62 198.36
(945.87) i28.99)
29,489.31 22,916.45
Mates to first-time As at
adaption 31 March 2020
4,196.51
hi} 191.04
hiii) (2,295.74)
hiify 531
h{tv) (#9.17)
i) (4.70)
hwit) 2.90
hiwili) {109.56)
hiwiii) 134.00
hiviif) (32.09)
9BB.43
_ (1.019.58)
3,176.95
Imeliar: GAAR® Adjustments Ind AS
{58,249, 28) {6,173.05) (64,422.13)
3,274.03) 384.52 (2,889.51)
63,017.59 5, 7BE.52 &8, 806.11
1,494,728 1,494.28
7,594.89 7,594.89
9,089.17 9,089.17

* The Indian GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.




HRATYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless alherwise stated)

1 Reconcillations
(g} Motes to first-time adoption
(i} EIR on barrowings
+ Previous GAAP did net require amertised cost accounting for labilities, Under Ind AS, the Company should determine the effective interest rate of its borrowings and
record interest expense on that basis. As per offective interest rate method, an entity identifies the fees that are integral part of the effective interest rate of
financial instrument and shall treat such fees as an adjustment to effective interest rate. The Company factared in the processing fees, arranger fees and ather
directly attributable cost for the purpose of detenmining interest at effective interest rate method. This had an impact of INR 182.56 on thie apening balance sheet,

{ii) Empected credit loss Ermm
Under previous GAAP, provision for advances is determined as per the management estimate and subject to the minimum provision required as per the RBI NBFC

divections. Under Ind AS, provision on advances has been computed based on Expected Credit Loss model as required by ind A5 109, ECL allowance is based on the
credit kosses expected 1o arise from all possible default events gver the expected life of the financial asset, unless there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since arigination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 month ECL. The fmpact on account of ECL as on the date of transition is INR 370,92,

(1) Security deposit
Under Indian GAAP, interest-free security deposit (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease term) are recorded at their transaction value, Under Ind

A5, all Mnancial assets are required to be recognized at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued thase security depesits under Ind AS, Difference between
the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognized in retained earnings. Consequently, the amaunt of security deposit as on 31 March
2019 has been decreased by INR 7,51 with a corresponding increase in retained samings.

{iv) Employer stock expense
As per the Indian GAAP, accounting for employee share based payments is applicable 1o the shared payment plans of the Company, The stock options granted to the
employees of the Company are of the parent entity and also there was no cross-charge to the Comparny towards employes stock option espenses incurred by the
parent entity. Accordingly, the Company has not accounted for share based payments as per Indian GAAP. Az per Ind AS. 102 on share-based payments, a share-based
transaction settled by another group entity on behalfl of the entity receiving services Is also within the purview of the standard and the entity receiving such services
i required to account for the shared based compensation. Stock options have to be fair valued on the grant date and expense has to recognized dver the vesting
pertod. For all the unvested options as on the transition date expense have been recognized for the period starting from the grant date till the transition date, This

hiad an impact of IMR 5,37

(¥} Defined benefit liabilities
Both under Incian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognized costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actiarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the

entire cost, including actuarial gakns and losses, are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses
are recognized immediately in the balance sheot with a corresponding debit or cradit to retained earnings through OC1. Thus the employes benefit cost for the wear
ended 31 March 2020 is reduced by INR 4.70 and re-measurement gains/ losses on defined benefit plans of the corresponding amaunt has been recognized in the OCK

{vi) Other comprehensive fncome.

The concept of Other Comprehensive income (OC1) did not exist under Indian GAAP. Also refer point (v) and (vi) above.

(wii} Gadn/{loss) net recognized on mutual funds
Gain/{loss) net recoghized on mutual funds recognized in local GAAP calculated taking cost as base has been reversed now and Gain ¢ (loss), net recognized on the
basis of carrying value on date of derecognition as base has been recognized in accordance with paragraph 3.2.12 of Ind A5 109, The impact of the same for the year
ended March 11 2020 was INR 2.90.

{vifi} Leases
The weighted average of lessees incremental borrowing fate applied to the lease Uabilities as at 1 April 2019 1s 15.82%.
On adoption of Ind AS the Company has recorded ROU asset to the extent of INR 159.15 and corresponding lease liability to the extent of INR 159,15
During the year ended March 31, 2020 the company recognized in the statement of profit or loss:
Depreciation expense from right of use asset of INR 109_56
Interest expense on lease liabilities to the extent of INR 32.09
Rent paid during the year to the extent of [NR 1!1.!19\{-\5 been adjusted against lease Hability

//;r‘,-fb?_'f TR
,_:' % o \




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Hotes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
fAmount I INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts
Flued deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Total il

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent
Balances with Banks in fixed deposit accounts with
original maturity of mare than three months

Taotal other bank balances L]
Total cash and bank balances [[R211]
HNote

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

- 1.50 1.50

1,64B.25 5,087 .67 7.593,39
21,075.02 4,000.00 .

24,723.27 9,089,17 7,594,859

T 786.92 447.04

371.72 786,92 447.04

25,004.99 9,876.09 8,041,593

The fixed deposit aggregating to INR Nil (2020; INR Nil, 2019: INR 193.74 ) placed with Banks has a lien for the financial arrangement availed by & fellow subsidiary

of the Company, Finnovation tech Solutions Private Limited,

The fixed deposit aggregating to INR 200 (2020 INR 425 , 2019: INR Nil) placed with Banks has a lien for the financial arrangement avafled by the Company.

The lixed deposit aggregating to INR 1.2 (2020: INR 11.2 , 2019: IMR 11,2 } placed with Banks has a lien for the credit card facility availed by the Company.

5 Derivative financial Instrument
Currency derivative options

Total

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

April 1, 2019

128.89

128.89

The Company had purchased foreign exchange option contract to cover its repayments towards external commerclal borrowing related foreign currency exposure.
Through the contract, the Company has the right, but not the obligation. to buy LISD at the Strike Rate provided the Spot at Feplry s al or abowe the Strike Rate, If
the Spot Rate i below the Strike Rate, the Company has no obligation to deal and can take advantage of favourable market conelitions, (Refer Note 42 for financial

risk management objective and policies. )

Particulars

Currency derivative aptions purchased
Mational amounts in USD

Fair value assets

& Trade receivables
Considered good -Unsecured

Less: Allowance for impainment loss
Total trade receivables

Trade receivables include debts due by:
Private company in which director 15 a directos or a member (Refer Note 40)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
" 0.00
128.89
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
- 1,103.73 1,383.08
= 1,103.73 1,383.09
- 1,103.73 1,363.09
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
P 1,085.00 1,279.15




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIKITED
Notes farming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amaunt in INR Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

T Loans

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Unsecured, considerad good (carried at amortised cost)
Loan to customer 65,244,172 95,747.22 14,505.98
Interest acorued 4,369.47 1,883.54 457 41
Less: Impairmient loss allowance {3,499.11) (5, 778,49} (B58.47)
Total G4, 114,48 91.852.27 24,104,912

B Investments

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss
Liquid mutual funds, quoted 1,511.25 2,502.90 4.05
Investment carried st amortized cost
Corporate bonds, unquoted 4.15 100.00
Total 3,511.25 2,544.15 104.05
Liquid mutual funds, quoted
D5P_Owernight Fund - Growth 2,327,839 unlts of INR 109721 each (31 March 2020:
2,234,203 units of INR 1,068, 69 each, 1 April 2019: Hil) 2,591,300 1,502.%90
HOFC Cash Management Fund - Savings Plan - Daily Dividend Nil (31 March
F020:M1, 31 March 2000: Hil, 1 April 204%; 380,49 units of 1063.64) = - 4.05
Nippon_Cwvernight Fund - Growth 9,065,226 units of INE 110,44 each (31 March
2070: Nil, 1 April 2019: Mil) 995,55 - =
Carporate bonds,
Lindfi AIF Bond Wil (31 March 2020: 41.25 units of INR 1,00,000 cach, 1 April 201%:
HLS umits of INR 1,21,212.12 sach) - 41,25 100.00
All the above investments are in indis

% Other financial assets March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

Security deposit 197.16 245969 238.92
Receivables from intermediaries® B,029.32 1,988,121 1,656.59
Others receivables 258,58 529.33 66,25
Total B,485,06 1,767.14 1,961.76

*Note ; The amount represents batance of loans repald by borrower, which as at the balance sheet date is pending settlement by the intermediary e wallet! platform
to the Company, this in-line with common business practices of settlement of amounts on a Transaction plus one! two (T+1/ T+2) banking days basis,

Other recelvables include March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Recetvable from related party - Karthee Technotogies Private Limited 36,33 0,08 -
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

10 Current tax assets (net)
Advance income tax 654,45 6685 131,53
(2020 net of tax provision INR 2,221, 19, 2019: INR 394.05)

£54,45 B, 65 13.53
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

11 Daforred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assots 1,469.30 1,264, 68 232.97

{Refer Mate 35)

Total 1,469.30 1,264, 68 232.97
14 Other non-financial assets March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

Prepaid expenses 54.75 122.95 45.81

Advance to suppliers 0.02 0.0 076

GST input tax credit . 0,80 46,93

Total 54,78 123.84 93,50
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KRATYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
fAmounts in INR Lakhs, wiless athnrwize stated)

15 Payables March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
) Trade payables
{a)  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises. 19.05 13.42 404
(b} Total citstanding dues creditors other than micre entesprises and small 1,262.08 1745 7B.45
enterprises
Total Trade payabies 1,281.07 141.07 A2.69
Disclosire relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:
Particulars Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 219
fa} Amount remaining unpaid o any supplier at the end of each acoounting year;
Princijal 19,06 FLEH 4.04
Intevest i E
Total
fis) Thr amnonmit of intenest paid by the buyer i terms of soction 16 of the MSMED Act, alang -
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year.
(€] The ameient of inteest due and payable Tor te poriod of defay in making pagment jwiich . . -
harve been paid but beyond the sppointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specificd undor the MSMED Act.
(i) Theiz armaiant of interest accried and remaiving unpald at the end of sach accoumiing year. . . .
{2} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Use succesding years, -
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpase of disallowance of & deductible expenditire mder ssction 73 of the MSMED Aol
Trade payables include* March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Apeil 1, 2019
Payable to Finnavation Tech Solutions Private limited 1,133.27 - .
Payable to Karthee Technologles Private Umited 44,49 -
16 Debt securitios March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
At amortized cost
Secured
Privately placed reedeemalle non-comver tible debentures 1,717.74 11,707 .14 1,935,065
Total 11,717.74 22 207.14 1,935 65
Al the Debt securities are in India
Hotes:
1. Terms of repayment of privately placed redesmabile non-convertible debentunes
Year ended . Termas of debt 0-1 Year 1-1 Year > § yoars Tetal
31 <M 21 Interest rate: 13,504 to 166 11,048, 28 69,46 = "M,77.74
Repayment terms:  Bullet repayments
and equated manthly instalments
(tatal &8 imstalments}
H-Mar-20 Interest rate: 18,121.70 A4,08%. 44 - 22,207,114
14,035 to 168.75%
Repayment terms:
Builli=t pepayments and equated
manthly instalments {total 72
instalments)
|01 -Apr-1% Interest rate; 1,535.65 . 1,9345.65
14.00%
Repayment terms;
Equated monthly instalments {total 15
Instalmenis)

fi Al the above non-convertible debentines are secured by hypothecation of portfolie of the Company. Minimum secarity cover of 101 1s required to be maintained throughaout the

term of debenture,
il The nan-convertible debentures arne guaranteed by fellow wibsidiary, Finnovation Tech Solutions Private Limited,

1% )




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
fAmounts ke WR Lakhs, unless otherwize sfoted)

17 Borrowings (other than debt securities) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
At amortized cost, secured
Term loans
1. From Banks 8,164,997 15,442.58 1,475.6%
il Fram others 12,250, 54 17,713,468 5,245.47
External commercial borsedngs 14,700, 94 15,0¥7.18 -
Bank overdraft 09 T.893.32 2,907.80
Total 35,116.74 56,126.77 9,428 96
Borrowangs in india 20,415.80 41,049.59 5,628.94
Borrowings autside India 14,700. 54 15,077.14 .
Hotes:
I Terms of repayment of term lnans
Your ended Terrms of borrowings 0-1 Yoar 1-3 Year > 5 years Total
-Mar-21 | Interest rate: 16,952 54 146336 . 20,415, B0
7.75% to 17%
Rispayment terms:
Bidlet repayments and Equated
monthly instsliments [totsl of 112
instalments)
31 -Maaer- 200 Invtevest rabe: 2000827 11,541,350 - 41,049.59
8.55% to 200
Repayment booms:
Bidllet repayments and Equated
monthly installments {total of 247
Instalmoents)
01-Apr-19 Interest rate: 50517 4,572, 80 W 628,96
135 1o 20%
Repayiment terms:
IEqulled manthly instaliments {total of
185 inatalments)
A, Terms of repayment of extermal borrowings
Year ended Terms of barrowings O-1 Yoar 1-3 Year = 5 yoars Total
3-par-21 Interest rate: - 14,7004 . 14, 700,94
& month Libar plus 4.5%5
Repayment berms:
Bulbet L
31-Mar-20 Interest rate: 15,077.18 15,077.18
& manth Libor plus 4,5%
Repaymeant. terms:
Bullot repayment

Hii. Al the above term loans and external commercial bosrowings are secured by hypothecation of portiolio of the Company. Minimn security caver of 1:1 s required to be maintained

throughout the torm of the ean,

fv. The tesm loans are guaranteed by fellow wibsidiary, Finnovation Tech Salutions Private Limited.
w. The overdraft (acility avaibed by the Company fram the Bank has been secored by way of a Lien fram from a Tellow subsidiary, Einnovation Tech Selutions Private Limited

i, There are no defaults as on balance sheet date in repayment of barrawings and interest therson,
wil. External commevcial borrowing has been radsed from Holding Company, Finnay Private Limited, Singapore,

18 Deposits March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
AL amartized cost
Inter carporate deposits
Secured - 100,00 -
Unsecured - - 749.17
Total = 10000 T49.17
Mote:
| Texms of repayment of intercorporate deposits
Year ended [Rate of deposits 0-1 Year 1-3 ¥ear = § ywary Total
31-Mar-21 . - - =
1 Mar 30 Ingerest rate: 100, 0 10000
e
Fepayment: terms:
Baillet repayment
01 -Apr-19 Interest rate: FELR K - 497
165 to 18%
Repayment erms:
E: 1% (total of
B imstalments|

B Intercorparate deposits for the year ended March 31, 2020 are secured by hypothecation of partfolio of the Company. Minimim security cover of 1:1 4 requined to be mantaied

thraughait the term of the loan.

i There are ma intercorporate deposits that are guaranteed by the directors or other related parties,
e sheet date in repayment of depesits and interest thereon,

I¥ There are no defaulis




KRATYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates forming part of the financial stabements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{moamits in WR Lakhs, unfess otherwise stoled)

19

21

iz

Other financlal Habdtities March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Interest accroed but not dise on bormowings 121.78 241,63 56,28
Employes benefits payalde 9,84 1116 145
Lease Wabdlity 92.97 21763 159,15
Others 315, 41 BF34 0.4
Total !Lﬂ.ﬂl 1,354.56 42.2‘
“Othsers includes provisipn for I related payables and other miscellanecus payables.

*Others include March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Payable to related party - Finnovation Tech Salutions Private Limited 125.20 17892 126.08
Payable to rolated party - Rartbes Tochnologies Private Limited 5. 3% A4 Ot -
Current tax Habilities inet) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 219
Current tax |iabilitics T2.79 . -
(2021: Met of advance tax of INR 315.3%)

Total current tax Habilities T1L.79 = -
Pravisions March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 201%
Provision for gratuity 48,43 18.25 B.47
Provigion for compensated absences .65 11.92 T.24
Tatal provision 78,08 10.18 15,71
Other nan - financial labilithes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Statutory dines 92,36 89,60 284.06
Interest recelved but ot due 89,92 B14.24 168,58
Total i82.28 1,103, 84 452,64




MRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIWITED
Wotes forming part ef the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
fAmouwnts by NG Laki, unless atheredee stobed)

21 Eguity share capital
The Comparsy has only ane class of share capital having a par wilise al IMR 10 per share, relermed to hesrerin as eguity shases,
1, 1 March 11, 2020 April 1, 2019
Authorized
15,100,000 oauity shane of INR 10 each, (3K0010,00,000 equity 150,00 00,00 100,00
shares of INR 10 each, J099:90,00,000 scuity ihases of INR 10 each)
tisued, subscribad and paid up share capital
10,70, 733 exquity shares of INR 10 oach [205E 7,568,311 equity shares af 1.0 75,83 LR
IHR 10 each, 2009: 38,536 squity shares af MR 10 each)
Total 107.01 75,61 [T
ia} Reconciation of shares autstanding at the n 3 i
gl At the wnd of the yast arc! . 202 March 31, I0Z0 april 1, 201%
Humbar of shares Amourg Humber of shares Amaimt Mumber of sharas Amount
Cutatanding ot the beginning of the year 7,565,413 75,63 5, 52 B A% 1,277,542 BETE Y
Al Issued during the year 313,900 nw 99, 8or w08 5, 70,984 52,90
Cutstanding at thve end of the year 10,770,231 197.02 7,586,111 75.63 54, 534 &5, 85

k) Rights, profererces and restrictions attached to shares
T Campatiy hins anly one clinss of equity shares having par valoe of R 10 per share, Esch sharehoider is entitied (o ane vote pov share hild, The Company declares and pays dividends I Indian
fiipaes, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors s subject to the approval of the sharehobdars in U enoiing Al General Mooting.
fn the event of liquidation of tha Company, the halders of squity shares will be entitied ta receive remalniing sssels of the Company, after distribution of all preferential smaunts, The distribution will
Bt I propartion ta the number of equity shares held by the shassholdern,

ix] Shares held by holding company March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, P01
Firmiov Private Limlted
10,64, 333 (31 March 2020: 730,433, 10 March B00: &6, 520§ equity b4, 300 7,%0,433 6,46, 526

shares of INE 10 each Tully paid

(d) Dotails of shares heid by sharshaiders helding mare than 5% of the agpregate shares in the Compary

Wame of the shareholder Warch 11, 2021 March 31, 2030 aprd| 1, 2019
Humber of shares % of holding in the Number of shares % of halding In the clus Humber of vhares % of halding in
clans thecla
Finnow Privts Limited 10,64,333 904 7,%0,433 L s, 528
“As per records of the Company, Including ity reghter of sharcholders and cther declarations recaived from shareholdens regarding beselicial interest, the above shareholding reprosants both Lo‘lnnd’
benelicial ownerships of thars,

{w) Ho class of shares have been Bsued as bonus shares of for comider ation otber than cash by the Compary during the period of Iive years immediately preceding the curtent year end,

1) Theeres are no shares reservnd Tor isue under aptiom or contracts and commsitments,

) Mo class of shares have been bought Back by the Company daring the period of Thee years mnmediately preceding the curment yesr gnd,

[y Qo 36 March 2021, the Board of Dircctors have approved fsue of 1,173,900 eqifly shares by way of rights issie tn the Holding Compary (Flnneee Pte. Lt ) at an Ssoe price of IHR 6,710 per share
lhhﬂunmnﬂr}q_f,_ share).




KRATYSEE SERWICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Modes forming part of the finencial statemants for the yesr ended 11 March 2021

14 Othor scuity March 11, 2031 34, 3 April 1, 2019
{a) Statusory reserve ufs 45-5C of the RBI A1, 1934
Dpening balance B01.34 165,95 -
ddd: current year transher 40,43 61%.% 165,95
Closing batance 1,361.77 BO134 188, 98
ib} Securities premium account
Opening balance 24,649.72 T, 16640 1,045
Add : securithes premium credited on share sue 1,031.31 § #8300 18,461, 54
Clasing balance A 61,03 15,649,721 1116646
e} Share optiom outstanding secaumt
Openieg halamce 104, 44 527 .
Atz Transfarrid dusing the year 06,16 war a7
Less: Transior to equity. - - s
Clasirg balance 310,60 10484 51T
id) Retained earnings
Opening balance 1,058.19 1301 aF9.08
Add; et Profit foe thie cusrent pear 280214 37655 .
A Other comprehemibsn incoms 10,49 152 .
Less: Transfer (o sLALULGny farkervwes 4041 #15.7% 185 9%
Closing balance 5 289,41 1,088 1% [IEXE]
Total resorves and surplus TN 1981165 13,850.79
Nature snd pumese of reserves
() Statutory ressrve ufs 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934
The: Compatey creates a reseeve In accordsnce with the provksions of Section 4500 of thee Seaerm Rank of indin hct, 1994 and transfers therein on smount squal ta or mare than beenty percent of Ity

nct prodit for the year, before declaration of the dividend,

ik} Securities premium resrve
Securities promiam reserve 15 sived o record the premium on ksee of shares. The resere can be wtilised onty for [imited porposes such ab fssiance of banus shares in accordance with the pravisions of

the Companées Act, 2013,

{e) Share optiom outstanding account
The Company pravide share based payment scheme to its emplopess. This shares of the parent company were granted to the emplayers under the scheme, The share aptions outstanding sccount

represents amaunl recognized over the vesting period and payments maste towsnds ssch options.

() Retained eamings
Retained earnings represents the surplus in Profit and Loss Account
The: Company recagnises change on account of remomsuroment of the net defined bemef it lability/[auset) as part of retatned warnings with weparate disclosurs, which comprises af actuasiyl gaing and

Nowses an delined benefit plans.
e} The Company does mal have any capital 5 or cantingent | o Bk March 31, 2021, March 31, 2000 and March 31, 20019,




KRAZYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Hotes forming part of the financial stalements for Lhe year ended 31 March 2021
fAmaunts in INR Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

5

26

7

29

]

3

iz

33

Interest income

At amortized cost

Interest on loans

Interest income (rom investments
Interest on deposits with Banks
Other interest ncome

Total

Fees and commission income
Fees from platform
Deficiency service focs

Other services

Tatal

Met gain/(less) on fair value changes

Het gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- derivatives

- Investments

Total net gain/{loss) on fair value changes

Fair value changes:

- realised

- unrealised

Taotal net gain/(loss) on fair value changes

Other income

Income fram business support services
Miscellaneows income

Total

Finance costs
On financial abilithes measured at amortized cost
Interest on borrowings
Interest on debt securities
Other borrowing costs
Interest on lease liability
Interest on shortfall of advance tax
Applicable net (gain) / loss on forelgn currency transactions and translation
Total

Expenditure in foreign currency
Interest expenses

Fees and commission expense
Commission to platforms
Commission to payment gateways
Credit assessment charges

Tetal

Impatrment on financial instrumaents

On financial instruments measured at armortised cost
Loans

Total

Employee benefit expenses

Salarfes and wages

Gratuity expense

Leave benefits expense

Contribution to provident and other funds
Share based payments to employees

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Depreciation and amortization expense
on tangible assets (refer Note 12)
on right of use asset (refer Note 39)
on intangible assets {refer Note 13)
Total depreciation and amortization expense

e
o =

EL-J

18]

¥

|

o

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
13,8545 21,366,286

1,34 9.83

47296 50,78

12.53 6. 6%
14,374.28 71,433.58
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,040.02 4,591.20
7.035.74 13,868, 15

- 5.41

8,075.76 18,464, 76
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
[128.89) 94,89

18.00 3.7

{110.89) 118,61
1172.31) 20487

11.42 91.79

(110,89} 118,61

36.33 12758

.07 10.45

38.40 238.03

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4,012.70 3,505.94
244315 3,391.32

- 770,94

24.45 nm

- 12.33

376,24} 502.52

6, 104,06 7,715.64
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
791.54 A05.33

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
851,36 2.294.14

1.86 20.47

252.70 1,149.19
1,105_92 3,463, B0
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
9,666.61 22,357.19

9 666,61 22,257,19
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
730.39 .07

16,15 14,48

18,29 644

43,43 19,30

206.16 99.17

433 10.40

1,018.75 870,86
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
67,65 64,57

133.27 109,56

10,91 9.85

211.83 184,08




KRATYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
34 Other expenses
a} Renot, rates and taxes
Director's fees, allowances and expensey
Auditar’'s fees and expenses
Foreign exchange loss
Legal and Professional charges
Bank charges
OHfice expenses
Expenditure towards Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR) activities
Other expenditure
Total

Mote = The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of Goods and service tax)

b} As auditor;
For statutory audit
Far tax audit
Far certificates
For other services
Tatal

¢) Corporate Social Responsibiiity (C5R)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
166,74 370 48

7.90 1.49

15,50 10,00

i 438,66

164.98 33318

75.41 47.72

180.58 151,90

50.55 7.40

79.52 25,54

641,18 1,336,37

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
7.00 5.00

1.00 1.00

7.50 4.00

15,50 10.00

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Campany meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of Its average net profit for the
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) acthvities identified by the Company and menitored by CSR Commities

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gross amount required to be spent 50.55 T.40
Amaount spent during the year
1. construction/acquisition of any asset
-under controf of the Company for futune use
-net under control of the Company for future use - -
. On purpose ather than (i) above: 50.55 7.40
50,55 7.40
35 Income tax
{A} Deferred tax relates to the following:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Deferred tax assets
On provisien for employee benefits 159.465 7.60 4.58
On income taxable w/s 430 T4.23 49,212 0.0
On ESOP expense 78.18 26.29 1.53
On expected credit loss 1,330,114 1,337.53 24%.99
On leases 1.52 = =
On athers 23.27 6,92 313,96
1,526.99 1,447.56 285.05
Deferred tax liabilities
On depreciation and amaortisation 1.02 4,69 29
On leases - 0.65 -
On borrowings EIR 53.80 144,36 5316
On derivative Instrument - 32,44 -
On others 1.84 a.7a $
57.67 182.86 56,08
Deferred tax asset, net 1,46%9.32 1,264.70 232.98




KRAIYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Maotes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
{B) Reconciliation of deferred tax awsets/ (liabilities) (net):

Opening balance at the beginnlng of the year

Tax liability recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
On borrowings EIR

On property plant and equipment

On athers

Tax asset recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
O provision for employee benefits

On income taxable u/s 430

0n ESOP expense

On derfvative instrument

On expected credit loss

Tatal deferred tax assets/ (Habilities) (net):

Tax Wability recognized in (€1
On re-measurements gain/ (losses) of post-employment benefit
Closing balance at the end of the year

(C) Deferred tax assets/ (llabilities) to be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

Tax Habitity
Amounts recogrised in Statement of Profit and Loss account

{0} Income tax expenses
= Current tax
- Adjustments in respect of current income fax of previous year
- Deferred tax (credit)/ charge
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

{E} Income tax charged to OCI

Het s/ (gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Income tax charged ta OCI

{F) Reconciliation of tax charge
Profit before tax
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable
Income tax expense
Tax effects of:
Taxes pertaining to earlier periods:
Mon tax deductible expenses
Utilization of earlier unrecognized deferred tax credits
Others
Income tax expense

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,264.70 231.98
90,57 91.21)
1.67 (1.76)
(1.63) (7.39)

8.53 430

.01 49.22

(51.89) 4.7
32.44 (32.44)

{7.40) 1,087,55

97.31 1,032.91

1.53 {1.18)

1,365.54 1,264.71
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
90,67 {100.37)

6.69 1,133.27

97.31 1,032.91
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,028.15 2.221.19

- 61.79

{201.09) {1,032.89)
B17.06 1,250.09

Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3.53 {1.18)

3.53 {1.18)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3,629,720 4,427.04
25.17% 25.17%

913.47 1,114.29

- 61.79

15,33 5.09

" {22.69)

(102.12) BB.20

826.68 1,246.68




ERATYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount fm INK Jokhs psnless otherwise stated)

3% Earndings per share

L

¥l

The followsing roflects the income and thane data used i the Basic and $8obod EPS compllat ism:

March 11, 2021 March 11, 2030
et profit attributshle to oouity hsldors 1,800, 14 ENF
Wedghtod avsrage number of equity shares for basic EPS [lace value of IR 10 0ach) T50,45% 1,36, 69%

Bashs amd dRited sarndngs per share (BN 6758 Al
17 Cmployee baneins
i&) Pefired contribution plans
Duiring tha ywar, the Conpany has recognized the following amaunts in the Statement of Prof it snd Less - March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Employers’ Contritatian e Prevident Fund and Employes Slate insurance [Hefer nate 12| 4341 19,30
Other plans provisiom
March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020 pril 1, 2019
a) Defined bonet® plan; Gratuity payable to employees Af.a3 1815 B.47
i) Dk lnog-teem bonelits: Compensated absences far Empleywes .64 1.5 1.4
Defined beredit plan: Gratulty pan
Thr asaiinits recogntoed in the balance sheet and the mossmant in the net defined bens(it obigation over the year, and the asumptions wsed ane o Tallsw:
Actuarisl assumptions March 11, 2021 March 11, 2020
[scount ralte [par asnimmp 5. 58% &, FHE
Rate of incroase in salary 10.00% 10.00%
Rate of atirition 0,00% 1200,
Changns in the present value of defined bonefit obtigation "y gratudly fund

March 31, 2021 March 11, 3020
Preent valie of sbligation at the beginming of the year 1825 ar
Imterest cost 123 0,85
Current service cost 14.92 13,84
Actuarial {gadn)/ lows on obiligations. 14.08 |4, 7oy
Fresent value of obligation at the end of the year® Al 42 18.26
Finclisded in provhdon for smployes Benelits
Expenie recognized in the Statemant of Profit and Loss Employes's gratulty furd

March 31, 3021 March 31, 1020
Curtent service cosl 14.92 13,.A4
Mtarasl ot 1,23 0,45
Totsd r ized in the 5 Profit and Losa® 18.1% T4 4%
“included in Employes bl ity sxpense (Refer Mote 523, Actoarial loss of IR 14.02 {1 March 20200 gatn ol PHR 4. 70) b includsed] frnother o henshee incame,

Azvats and Habilities recognized in the Balance Sheot: “s gratulty fund

March 11, 2021 Margh 31, 1020
Present value of unfunded obligation as &1 the end of the yea 43 1828
Unfunded net {asset] / Hability recognized in Balance Sheet® 48,42 10.26
“Included i provisian lor emplayes benelits
Expected contribution to the fund in the
next yoar Mareh 31, 2021 March 11, 2020
Gratuity . -

A it itative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2021 I as shown below:
s gratiity fund
F

it an defined benelit obiigation March 11, 2021 March 11, 2030
Discoant rate

15, T {1.08) 11.51)

1% decrease a.ax 3,05
Change in #ate of Salary increase

1% increnase 120 o

1% decrense [2.94) .m
Change in Raie of Emgloyee Turnoeer

1% increase. .82} .98}

195 107

1% o iy




KRATYBEE SERVWICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Mates forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2001
fdmaul i1 N [k uniess otherwise stated)

vill  Maturity profile of defined bonefit abligation Employes's gratulty fund

Yot Mareh 31, 2011 March 11, 3030
I3t Fallowing Yoar 160 0.0k
2l Following Tear 182 oy
Ird Folbowing Year ENTY 0,5
Ath Following Year 129 o
“ith Falicwing Year 142 .15
Sam of Years & To 10 = 0T
Sam of Years 11 and abowe 0.0 .06

I8 Employes Stock Optlen 52

heme(ESQP]
This Parend Comspany’s Board approved ESOP plan 2046 lor grantieg Emplayes Stock Optlons in fodm of squity sharies linked o the completion of & mininam pericd of contineed erployment to the
eligible emphayecs of ke Company, menitanid and supervised by the Board of Directors of parent Company, The smployees can purchase equity shares by exevching the optkns a vestod al the price

spcillnd i Ehe gramt,

The: following table Ilustrates the number and weighted average exencie prices (WAEP ) of, and movements in, share optioes during the year

March 11, 2011 Mateh 31, 2020
Farticulars Humber WAEP (INR} Humbser WAEP (INR)
Dptions outstanding st beginning of year 5,99, 198 . 408281 -
Add:
Dptions granted durieg the year 8,49 830 - 12,458 -
Lt .
Opt bans exercied during the year - . i
Dptions Lagsedd cuirlig the vear 15, 204 . 1,519
Dplkns oulstanding at the end of year 14,13 871 . 5 %9, 198 .

Optioen exercisable ol thi end of year .

Im accordance with the above mantiened ESOP Schemse, MR 206.18 (Previous Year B8 959,17 | has boen charged bo the Statemant of Profit and Loss In rebation to tha options granted during the year

edod 31 March 2021 m Employes Stack Option Schome Compssmation,

Thee fair value of each optian & sstimated an the dete of grant using e Black Scholes moded, The foliowing tables fist the inputs bo the [Optian pricing nsodel] used For this poars snded;
Mareh 31, 2071
— el

March 31, 2020

Welghtod avarage fair value of the options at the grant dates (IHR) 114 1.05

Deviddanad yield (%) ) [

Rish free interest rate (%) A 4TH-5.59% G280 - 7.15%

Expociiod |ife of share options yesns) 1.48 107

Expocied vilatility (%) BE6TE - 6141 S4.99% - 82178

Welghted sverage share price (IR} 115 .08

19 Lewiei

The Company has cortain beass arrangewsents for promises. These lease artangements range for a period between 12 manths and 36 months, which include both liable and non lal

Neviisars, Thee leasess are renewalile for further period on mutually aqreeable torms and alse inclsde sscalation clausis.,

Opsrating leases where the Campany b a lessee:

thliin) Betalts of right-of-use assets ane as follows:
Farticulars Category of BOU syiet
Pramie

Balance a1 at 01 April 201% 159.15

Additions 110,63

Amartization {refer Mote 33 109,56

Balance #3 a1 11 March 2020 210.12

Amsartization [refer Hote 11 13127
B6. 95

Balance as at 31 March 2021




HHATYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

oty ferming part of the financial statements for the year onded 11 March 2071

(dmeound in INT lakhs uniless othenwise stated)

(i) Lease liabilities
Particulars
Halance as at 01 April 2019
siditions
Lier puiyTrnsd| L%
Inborest on leass |labilies (rofer Note 29y
Balance ax at 11 March 2020
Inzrest i lease abdlities [oofer Hate 79)
Lense
Balanes s at 11 March 2021

1} Brewk-up of current and pan-curment loase Hnb#ities
Pasticular
Current Ivase |bdites
Becnirrent fease llabilities

(i) Maturiy ahalyss of (e lahilties
Parthculars
Less tham ane year
One o Ve yean
Total

W] Ameunts recognised in Statemient of Profit and Loss aoceunt
Farticulars
Initerast on bease Hobdities {reder Hote 19

¥k hemimits recogrdeed &n Statement of Canh Flows

ulars
Trtad cash outflow for leases

40 Redabed Party Dischosures:

{4} Hamsss of related parties and description of relationship as identified and ceriiied by the Company for the years ended 11 March 2081 and 11 March 2000:

Holding Company
Finnow Private Lim&ed, Singapore

Dther relatod parties
&) Follow subsidiary
Finnevation Tech Solutlons Private Limited
Karthes Technalcghes Privote Limited

(b) Hey Management Personne! (KiP)
Madhusudan Ekambaram, Director
Karthtkeyan Krishnawwamy, Directar
Wivok Vods, Direcior

{c] Relatives of KMP
Histan Sowdagar (speese of Madbasudan Ehambaram

Sharsmiga Nursing Home: pany of

Visha Visdn {mother of Vieek Yadal
Vanl Jain (weile of Wivek Vda)

Krishnasswany Bharumathl imothor of Karthoeysn Krshnagsamy)
Sreewn|dhl Sattanathan [father of Karth&syan Heivhnaseamy)

(B} Detaily of Liasactichs with relaied party in the ofdinary course of business for the year emded:

(1] Particidars
Al Transaction during the year
Sale of seirvices:
Finnoreatian Tech Solutians Privabe Limited
Kartheo Technologhes Private Limited

Puichoe of services:
Finnovation Tech Solutions Privete Limited
Kartboo Technotagies Privale Limited

Share issuad during the pear jrefer Note 23(a) end 23(b1)

Finnav Private Limited [Equity share of IMB 10 cach)
Securithes premiem on the shars. Kaisd

Finance cost
Finray Private Limited
EiBbnavwanyy Bharumaih|
Mackmadan Ekambsoam
Hutan Soudagar
Shanmuga Nursing Homs
Hrishrsmusrthy Ekarmtingam
Latha
Manfila
Sreanidhi Tattanathan
Vanl dnke

15915

16k 36

1133.99)

Jam

21763

14,44

{4911}

EE‘I

March 31, 3021 March 31, 2020
6500 124,65

2194 QL97

LFET IT.ed

Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2030
45,03 12460

1794 w297

.57 7683
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
24,45 108
march 31, 2021 sarch 31, 1030
(LR 13899

L)

March 31, 2028 March 11, 2010
0, 5 1In.ae
(T 1,5¥.58

a00.z8 L8112
A48.08 LY
nom a.98
omn 3,400,208
FL iRt A, 33
L] 41
.64 -
517 DB
464 FET]
1.%5 ]
1.9 s
1.95 s
189 L4
.68 FR
021 <
o



KRATYBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Hotes part of the i ial st s for the year ended 31 March T011
fAmmosant in INF lokhs aniess otherwie stoted)

tssue of nomrconvertible debontures
Heluhnasveary Bhanumathi . all.on
Shaidhisudan Ekambacam o000 .
Hutan Seudagar 40,00 0,00
Shanmuga Hursing Home - 0,00
Srewnidhy| Sattansthnan o 40,000
Wanl Jain #1LEK] A0 00
Wibha Yeda 000 -
Wiwink Vil 0,00
Finnay Private Limited = 14, 130,00
March 31, 021 Mareh 31, 2020
) Balance a5 81 yoar end
Recaivable
Finnovation Tech Solitians Private Limited - 5T
Karthee Techrologies Private Limited - Jp3.58
Fayable -
Finmavation Tech Solutions Private Limied 1.258.47
Rastbow Technologies Privaie Limited 5455 -
Finrav Private Limited 0.0z o.07
Finnow Private Limited 14, 10094 15,0778
Hon-comearible debentires (incl. scoried interost)
K ikhrsanmy Bhanumstn) " A0.C%
Madharudan ERamsaram L85 s
Hutam Siidagar w008 D00
Banmuga Mursing Home i 11023
Sreenidhi Sattanathan = 40,00
Varl Jali B05F #1L.0
Wibka Yeda 20,32 =
Wivek Yeda .22 .

() Tores and conditiors of trarsactions with rolated parties
The trarmacticens with related parties ane made on berms equiabent o those that presall In arm’s bength transactions.

i) Finnowation Toch Salutians Private Limited, a felios subsidiary s s Cotporate Guarantee's sggregatig to N8 71, 496.08 {2000: IHR 47,658.27) # Favour of the company for #ts busingss
FEUiremes,

le} The Bank cverdraft avalled by (b Company ageregabing to (N8 0,29 (2020: KR 7,890,312} has been socured by way of tiens on Tioed deposit balances of a leflow subsidinry Finnovation Tech Solution
Private Limived,

41 Segmant reporting

The Compary's aperalions predominantly relate to providieg consimes knding. The Chied Operating Decisinn Maker (CODM) revim the opeseations af the Company m one operating sogment, Himee
P i abi segment information has been fumilihed hirewith,

41 Financial rlsk management objectives and policles
The Campany i exposed to various financial risks, Thise risks ane categorinsd into market risk, crodit risk and liquidity risk, The G ¥s risk mar % oo by the Board of Directors
and focuses an securing long torm and short term cash flows. The Company dees nol engige & trading of Tinancisl assets for speculatien purposes,

..'-_-_ y e ';_-‘E‘.;i\
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KRAZYBEE SERVICES FRIVATE LAMITED
Maotes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 11 March 2071
{amount in IR liakhs unlesi atherwhe stated)

(&1 Market rige
1 b5 g risk that thee wistiie: of an and off-balanco shawt pesitions of the Company will be adversely affected by movemsents in market retes or prices sech oy interest rates, currsncy fik, credit spresds
rendting in a boss io carnings and capital,

{1y Interest rage rivk
The policy of the Compnmy 5 to minimée ierest rate cash flow ik exposnes on long-term Laans and borrovwings. The Comparry is exposed 1o changes in market interest rates thrsugh loans and bank
barrmwings st variable interest rates.

Intmrest rate risk exposure
Below i thir ovavall éaxpimure of the Company to intorest rate i

March 11, 3021 March 11, 2020 April 1, 2019
Warinble rate Borrgeig i, 100,94 15,007, 18 .

Interest rate sensitivity
The foilowing table demanstratis the sermitivity b o reasonably possible change in intierost rabes a0 that portion of toans and borrowings. With all sther varfabies held constant, the Company's prodit

trfaie o by affected through the mmpact on floating rate borrowings, as Mol

Incrmass ¢ [decreme) Effect on prafit
i basi peints e tax

W0

IHR =5l TLS0

MR -50 (73,500
w00

IHR «50 5.9

MK 50 .09

{15} Forelgn currency risk
Fareign currency risk i the risk thal the Talr value or future cash flows of & financisd dnstrument will fluctuste becsuse of changes in foneign exchango rates, Thi Company's ssposure to the rik of

changgs in foredgn exchange fates relates primarily to the external commercial borrowing.

Foreign curmency risk suposure:

Thi expesira to faredgn curency risk at the end of the reporting period, translated to MR 8t clozing rate, s as fellow

Farticulary Mareh #1, 2031 March 31, 2020 g 1, T8
Firusniclal labRities jin USD) 20000 00,00

External Commencinl g 10, O el 15,077, 18 -
Wt ouposune to lareign curmency risk (Habilities) 14, 00, 5 15,007, 18 s

Fareign currency sens|tvity
The foliowing tabbe demonstrates U seraitivity to a reasanably possible change In tee US dollar exchange rate for any sther materisl cusrency], with ail ather wariabies held constant, of th
Campany's prafit belone tax {due (o changes in the fak value of monetary assets and |kabilies), The Campany des not have sxposurs to any other forolgn camencies .

Inerenied (decromse) Eifect om profit
fin bl points bafore L
i =1 7.0
A0 [EEEA T
Fler) 10K 150,77
A0 (150,77

Derivatives
The Comgiany entised into fetelyn exchange option contract b cover #s future repayments of extermal commencial borrowing during the year eaded 11 March, 2020, The Company has taken foreign
exchange eption contract for currenches primarily denominated in the Us Dollar pertaining o External Commercial Borrowings.

The ol linbile e ontracted principal of the derivative contiscts oitslanding ; B
Particulary Currency | March 31, 2001 Warch 11, 2020 gl 1, 2018
Derlvative instrumants
Foreign Currency options

Contiact ¥alue in USD uso = .00




KRATVDEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes farming part of the financisl statemernts fer the year ended 31 March 2021
{Aminr in INK lakhs wniess offerwise stated)

18} Credit rivk
Cradit pisk b ther risk of financial loss to the Compasy i @ customers or countorparty to a financial intrenent fails i meet it contractust abligations, Credil rbd, arlses principally from the Company's
loare ko customers, trade recedrables, other financial aveets and als ariues from vestments dn mutust funel snd Corporate bods, cash and deposits bedd with barks and finencial institutions. The
maslman expasure to credit ik s equal to the canrying value of the financlal awsots. The abjective of managing counterparty credit rish & to prevent loses in Pnoncial swsets, The Company: ssseiue
the creds quality of the counterpsrties, takig into scenant thelr linsnclal gosition, past experience and otk {actars,

11k Credit risk management
Credit risk management policy provides for |dentification snd asstssnsent of cridit sk, asesument and management af paitlolis credit risk, and risk moniboring and eontrsl. The rhk parameters are
same for all financial assets for all the perisds p This Cosmpary & the: probability of dedauli upsen initial recognition of asset and whather thene has been a significant incresss in crodit

risk on an on-going Bsis throusghout each reporting period. In gonesral, 1t 1 presursed that credit risk b significantly increased since inftial recogaition i the payments ane cverdue, & defsult on &
Financlal asuet s when the coumterparty (s to make comractusl payments. This definition of defaalt s determvined by considering the business environmant in wikh entlly operates s ather maces.
ecomamic factors,

Thee Compary pravides lor espected crodit s based on the following:

Axsel groap Banis far i Provision for ted credit loss

Lowr credii risk Cash and cash equivalents, othey bank balances, loans and other financial assets 12 month expected credit o
(oderate credil rik Loars anel ather Tinancisl assets Life time expocted cred loss of 12 month expected credit bass
High credit risk Loans and other financial asseis Life time expected credit boss fully oy ided far
k m"""‘:h"""“‘"'""“' the wty March 11, 3631 Mareh 31, 1020 april 1, 2019

LLow credit risk on finencisl reporting dats

Cash and cach equivalents 24,723,270 B088.17 T, 554,69

Bank balances ather than atve n.m TRE.9Z a47.04

Derivatien finsncial instruments - 1889 .

Trade recetables . 1,001.73 1, 38000

Loans* 4,903,531 B4,197.52 14,8710

Ik e 351135 FRITRE] 10,05

Other Tinancial nsets B 485,06 3,767,14 1,961, 76

Maderaie credit rsk

Loem® s =

High credit risk

Loam® 4,710,328 3.431.24 AT

* ropresenis gross valies of the financial assets

Carh and cash equivalents, Bank depasits
Tho Company Limits Its sxposure ta credit risk of cash hedd with baiks by dealing with Bighly rated barks and irstitutions and retaining slficient Balances in bank arcounts required 1o meet 8 manth's
operational costs. The Management cevievs the bank accounts on rigular bisis snd fund deawdawns ane planned i onsune that there i ninimal sucplos cash in bank accousts,

Invaitrments
For dnvestments in mutus Tunds, the Comgany ramacts with asset manngement companies having strong track recard and vwests in igeid funcs and short berm funds whene the underlying
fmvestments are predominantly placed in government and troasury securities and high rated corporate bands, vestments In corporate bands are made with comparres having stroeg cosdit ratings,

Lasns
The Company clasaly manitors the credit-worthiness of the borrovsr's theough Internal systems. The Compansy assesses iNcrpase in credit bk an sn ongoing bask for amounts secetvabile that become
ipast due anid defaull iy consldersd to have cocurred when amounts recetvablo become B0 days past due,

Trade recalvables

Trade recetvables ropresents mandes held by fintech platforms for further disbursements t be made to the o These running accounts balances and are temporarily held
with fintech companies and keeps recucing a5 and when disbursements are made b Uhi customers. Compary feviews these balances an a regular basks and ennes that there are no large cutstaniing
badances for longer periads,

Other financial assets maasuted st smortized cost
Other financial assets mpaired at amcrtized cest ncludes socurity deposits recoiabies from intormesdiaries and others, Credit rish related to these other financial assats i managed by montaring
the recoverability of such smowats comtinuously,




KRAT'YBEE SERYICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial ststements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021
{Amoumt in iR Tokies umdess otherwise stated)

1) Expacted crodit losses for Hranelal assets other than loans
T Company provides far sspected credit losses an (inancial sssots other ban Lo by aasessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses:

- Fouw e il cash edquivalents and othar bank babances - Since the Company deals with oaly high-rated basks and fimsncial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash and cash seuivslonts, other bank
balances and bank depesils i erabioted as very low,

- Fat lvestments in mutuak funds and Corporate bonds- Credit risk is considered low because the Company deals with high gualify ssets and instruments with strong credit ratings,

- For Trade recefabloy - Crodit 1isk i considersd low because these balances are with groug companies with strors financlal resources and the batances are held for vhorter periods,

+ For security depadits pahl - Credit risk b constdered low becau thi Company b in posiession af the underlying asset.

« For odher financisl assets - Credit risk is evaluated bised an Company’s knawledge of the credit worthiness of those parties and les allowance f messared for 13 manth expected credit s pon
Indtial recognition and provide for Ufatime expected credil losves upon significant incroass |n credit rigk, The Ceampany does not have any expectod loss based impairmont recogied on wsch sssets
cansidering thelr low credil risk nature.

Enpected credit loas for loans
Cradit rish

Cradit risk is the probable ik of loss resdting from a borrower's faflure to repay @ baan or moot contractual obligation, It arises principally from the Company's lsams 1o customers, For risk
management repting purposes, the G coriders snd liidates all ol of credit risk expasure,
Credie default risk

Comidering the nature af advances ghon - snsadl ket alne, shorter term and retail - the Company betloves that the quantitative criteria for stting the defwition of defsult b appropelate and
suftichent. The management has imbibed the qualitative aspect in the categorizstion of the asset portfolio e first tme barrowers and repeat Barmowsry] which comiders the qualilative sspects of
chafinition of delault, The Company has therofore set owt the foliowing definition of default for all lean products s e

Diys Fant (i: Exposaies that have one or more instaiment past due far 90 days or more.
Ewant drivan dafiults: This will be based on the customer specilic facton such & declarstion of bankruptoy by thie customer, death of Borrewer and othey customer specific factars. This will b
applied on a cise by case basss.

Empacied cradit bois mesturement
Frid A5 10% autlines & “three stage” model for impalement bosed on changes in credie quality since InB recogritian a summanbed below:

Stage 1 - Credit risk hm not increased sigaiiicantly since indtinl recogrition - Recogrise 12-months ECL, and rocogniae imtorl an & gross bt
Stage 3 - Tredit risk has incroased signilicantly vince initial recogrition - Recogrive Hietime ECL, and recognise interest on & gross bask;

Stage 1 - Financlal awet i credit impaied - Aecogibe Liletime ECL and prisent interest on a et basds (e, on the grows carmying ameunt ket credil allowancs),

The PO for stage 1 and 2 will not be materially offerenl given the shart-term nature of the advarces.,

Sigrdficant ircrasse in credit risk
The Comparsy believes that there & a sigmilicant mcrease in crodit rish when DPD crosses. 80 days.

Maaes Larirg ECL - of inputs, and sstimation tachnd
Expssctind crodil losses are the discounted product of the probability of defasit (PD). exposure at defasult (EAD) and loss given default (LGD), defined o follows:

- PO represents the Hkelihood of the barrower defaulting on its obligation efther over next 17 months or over the remuining Lietime of the instnument;

+ EAD tu basowd on The amoumts that the Compay expects to bo owed al the time of default over the next 12 montks or remaining |fetime of the instrumont.

+ LGD represents the Company’s expectation of loss given that & defsult occurs. LG s eapesssd In percerisge and remaing unaffected from the fact that whether the financlal instrament & o Sage
1Muﬂm1wmﬂm__'l.




HRAIVBEE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Hates forming part of the financial istements for the year snded 31 Mareh 2021
fhment in WK lakhs onless otterwiie steted)

Probability of default [PD) computation mods|
P ar default rate s &n estimate of the Hoelihood of thie default event oteurring in future. Accordingly, a lowar PO signifies lower cradit risk. FD s extimatied by using historical data, ard b done over
# particula time horkon, 16 & dond by peviorming vintege anafysks aver the historical dats of default to svess how default rates ehangs sver Lime and [actars current macro sconaenle data and

‘compute the risk of delaidl in the next 12 monitfs and the enties [Tetime of the loan.

Lot given default (LGD] eamputatian model

Lorss ghven default (LGD) b defined s the percentage of economic ko in case of defaull. LGD computatian i based on the lender's lowes on defsulted accounts after tha consideration of recovery
percentages. Ml the loans of the Compary s af undecured nature. The management helieves that the LODy deplcted basis the historical dets 1§ set representative of Lhe future as It represents
frevwth phase al' the campany and also the btorical data b insufficlent. T managenment s applied an override on thi LGD Sages 39 a8 o depict the expected lows rabos in U e term,

Thee tabibe bebinw sismmaries the grow carrying valuse and the auocisted allowances for sxpectad credit lov (ECL) stage

Ay at 31 March 2071

Particidan Stage 1R 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Geass carrying value 64,903.31 4, 71028 49,611.99
Mlowwance far ECL 2,026.95 JATLE 549911
Het carrymg walie &2,874.36 1,738,192 64,114,48
As at 31 March 2020

Particular Stage 1 3 Stage 1 Tatal
Giross carrying value 94,107 5 1,413,724 WT.630.Th
iilbowance for ECL 36T 50 2,550.90 5,770.49
Mot carrylng valise POSI.0] 92004 RS2
Jhs at @1 April 2019

Particulars Shage 16 2 Stage 3 Total
Groas canying value J487T A7 a7 74,983, 39
Allowance for BCL A, 82 49,85 B58.47
Mot carrying valuo 14,068.60 1632 24,104,927
Wirite aff paliey

Tha Company writes ff financial asets, in whole or i part, when it has exhausted all practical rcovery efforts and has concluded there & no reawsnable sspectation of recovery, The catstanding
contractunl amounts of sich atiets witben off during the year snded 31 March, 2021 was N8 @, 580,00 {11 March 2000 IMR 17,337.04). The Company stll ssebs to recover amaums [ 1 legally awed in
T, buit which have been parttalty weitten off die to ro ressonable expectation of Tull recowery,

(€} Liguiidity rick
Liguidity itk & the rik that the Company will not be able to mest (b5 financial obligations as they become tee, The Company marages it quidily Fisk by ensiriog, o Tar as possible, that it will
vy have sulliclent Bquidity to meet its sl wien dus,

Management. of the Compary montters forecast of liquidity poiien and cath and cash equivalents on the bask of sxpected cmsh flows, The Liguidity Management Policy alms o align market risk
managemant with overatl : elipeciives, articulste current inberest rate view and determioe pricing, mix and maturity profile of assets snd HabEithe. The asswet llabiliy manageenomt palicy
Invvnlvey praparat ion gap ropesits snd enusing preventive and b Mt o mdch the inberest rate risk by providing foe duration gap analyiis and control by
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Mates forming part of the financlal statemants for the year ended 11 March 2021
{Amount dn INF fokhy aless otherwise stated)

31 March 20217

Dbt Sarwcuit ILhesy

Basrrerarings obkssr tham debt socurities
Trade payables

Gthar Financisl Isbiliy

31 March 2020

Dot Securities

Borrowings other than debt seciriies
bnbier -corpaiats Depeits

T payables

Bther financial Habdity

Borrowings other than debt sscurities
inter-corporate Deposis

Trade payabiies

Qthay Tinancial lialility

4} Capltal mansgemant

Fou the purpose of the Company's capltal management, capital includes fsued equity capital, share promium and all other sguity rseres attribatable to the sguity heldors, The primary objective af
It the lder value and 1o ersuie W Campinys sbillity Lo continue @ 8 geing concerm, Regulatory capital refated information i

Less than 1 year 1ta 3 years Total
14,048, 24 8. A 11,717.74
16, 952.54 18, 16430 ¥5,116.74
128,07 - 1,281.07

560,01 E 540,01
0, 841,90 T8, #3366 ()
18,171,790 4,085, 84 23,200.14
16,957 54 27,008.%0 AL971.04

100.00 : 100,00

141,07 141,07

1,254,450 . 1,354, 56
6,50 BT ENCETN o7, 773,81
. 1,935.85 [ITRT
5,054,17 4,572.80 5,638,96
AT . 749,17
BL.65 . R
420,29 . 470,39

, J08. 32 T, 900,44 TLBIETS

the Company's cagital e
ot of the B8 mandated diclowne,

Ther Company has not distriluted arry dividend to its sharehotders, The Company monftars gearing b |La. total debi in propartion be its overall financing structure, Le. equity and debt. Total debt
comprives of bormowing from holding comparsy el thee Company, The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjumtments bo it in the light of changes in economic condion and the risk

characteristics of th underlyeg anets.

Msrch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Agril 1, 1019
Tatal equity i 51,74% 84 9,684.33 12,916,43
Debt securites 1 T I1,007.14 1,935,65
Borroerings other than debt securitks iy 18T 56, 126,77 9,028.50
Deposits (el - 100,00 148,17
Total deht Awd=iiige (i) Al A4 FE,43191 12,3178
Less: cash and bank balances i) 25,094.99 9,870,009 B.047.93
Hel debit i) = ¥ )efwi) 1, 73549 68,557 42 4,201.8%
Overall financing {vliEf={i1+ {win) 75,485.31 9824715 77,188, 30
‘Gearirg rats i i} 0.29 o7 o1
Mo changes wee made i tho abjectives, polickes of processes Tor managing capital during the years presented,
44 Change In lisbilithes arising from financing acthvitbes

Particulars

March 11, 2020 Canh flows Exchange difference March 11, 2021
Dot seciritics FrR AT 110,487, 40) - T
Borrovwings other than debt securities b, 12677 (20,613, 79) 1376 24) 15, 116.74
Dernits, 100,00 |0, oo - 4
Total lishilities from {inancing activitie 41051 {31,225,19) 1176.34) L e ]
FParticulars. April 1, 2019 Caih flew Exchange difference Mareh 31, 2010
Debt securities 1,935,865 IR : TEE0T. 14
Barrowings other thisn debt wecurities 9,420.96 A5, 554,63 41,18 56, 126.77
Depasits ; i b Ta.17 BA%. 171 L 100,00
Taial HalsRithes fram Iﬁ’hﬂ,\-mhﬂu "-\’l ' 12, 315.78 b5, 17895 F411H 7R 431,91




HRAIYBEE SERYICES PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes forming part of the financial statements for the year onded 31 Mareh 2031
fkmount i R Tokivs untess otherw (s stated)

45 There has been no significant impact on the aperation /Hnancisl pasition of the company an acosunt of th cuthreak af the COVID-1 pand anl the | vestrictions arhing therefeom, 61
e guldelines retating to "COVED- 1% Aegulatory Package’ dated 27th March, 3020 and subsequent guidelines on £ mosatorium dated 17th April, HK20 and 230d May, 3000, The Company had
ftered an optianal moratarium in accordance with s Board approved polices L its customens based on requests as woll @t on & suo-mvato bass betwesn Tst Maich, 2020 and 1ist August, 2020. For
saach accownts whire The nsatatorium bs granted, the aset class#ication shall remain stand atill during the moratorism period,

48 The Horourable Supreme Court of india, wide sn interim order dated September 03, 2020 B the Wil petition (Gajendra Sharma ¥s Union of india & Anri, has divected that B accounts wivich were
mat deciared Hon-Performing sssets (WPA'] LIE August 31, 2000 shatl not be declared as HPA EIL Further orckers, Accordingly, am acooind, which was ot classilied as ¥9A ns ot August 31, 2020, has not
Beon clasifiod a5 NPA sstnetguently i per the BB Master Circolar - Prdentisl Hosms on Income Recognition, Awvet Classification and Pravisioning pertaining to sdvances. The interim oeder granted
o fol declare accourds a8 NPA stood vacatod on March T3, 3021 vide the judgement of the Hon'tle SC in the matter of Smadl Scali indusirial Mamifsciurens. Association vs, U01 b Ors, and othor
connected matbers. In accordase with the instructions in paragragh 5 of the RBI circular dated april 07, 2071 isued in this connection, the Company has continued with the asset classilication of
baveiey stemimly a5 per the matant A8 instractions / IRAC norms,

47 The interim orcer grasied to not declars accoumts as NPA stooed vacated on Masch 23, 021 wide the: Jutgemant of the Hon'ble SC in tho matter of Small Scabe Indutrinl Masulacturers Assaciation vs,
Ui i Or. and other conmected mattors. n accordance with the imtructions in parsgragh 5 of the RBI clroulsr datod Apeil OF, 2001 hsued in this the Company has ] with the
asset classilication of bosrower socounts se per the extant R8I imtructions § (RAS marms.

48 The Code on Soclal Security 2070 ['the Code’) felating to employee benefits, during the empl % and post-empl his recetied Presidential assent on S ber 28, 2150, The Code has
bowen pubdished In the Gamette af Indis. Furthar, the Minktry af Labour and Employment has released draft rides for the Code on Mavember 11, 2000, Howevir, the effectie date Tram which the
changes sre applicable b yet io be notfied ared e for quantilying the financial impact are also not yet ssed,

Ther Compary will pasess the impsct of the Cede and will ghe sapronsiote bypact in the financlal stabements in the peviod inwhich), Bhe Cocs lecoemes sffectbe snd the relsted miles 10 determine the
fimancial impact are published.

49 Doparteent of Financial Services, Minkitry of Finance, Gevernment of india vide notification mo. F.No.2/12 /2000-D0A.1 dated Octobor 23, 2000 comvoyed thet b viow of the wnprecedented and
entreme COVID - 19 situation, the Contral Government has approves “Scheme far grant of ex-gratia pay of difference bet d interent and simpbe Enberest for stx montks o bormowens
In specified loam sceownts, (1.0,2000 o 31820201, ﬂ-hmnnmrtms:mmmbermumghm‘ntmu:nmuu-mmmm Tha Bank has develaped & Board
approved Policy In line with the cperatinnal guidelines and pronouncemsents sised in this regard and conduscbed (e aforesaid soerehe of crediting the benefit in the respective accoants of aligiide
[barrmers within the prescribed timeline.

50 In acoordance: with the RS notification e, REI/DNER/2016-17/45 - Master Direction DHBR. PO, DOB/03, 10.119/20161 7 dated September 1, 2016 - Master Dinection - Mon-Banking Financial Comparry «
Systemically Impartant Nen-Dapodit Leking Company and Depostt taking Compay [Reserve Bank | Directions, 2016 ithe "Mater Direction™). Reler Annesxares for additional NBFC disclosure,

51 impact of COVID 19;
The Carvled-1% pandemic has resutted in a significans decline in the economic activities scron the country, comidering the current chcumstances, the Company has recogniied an additional write-off of
HR 1268, 6% Laki, The Compasry will continie to closely monitor any material changes to fitung econamic conditinm,
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4% Financlal instruments and fair value disclosures

The carrying value and fair value of financial assets and labliitles are as follows =
Fair value Fair value

b profit and foss th - Amortised cost Total Fair value

As at 31 March 2021
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,648.25 - 21,075.02 24,721.27 24,723.27
Bank balances other than above - - m.n kAl m.n
Loans = . 64, 114,48 64,114,498 64, 114,48
Investments 3,511.25 3,511,125 3,511,25
Other financial assets E . B,485.06 #,485.06 B, 485,06
Total financisl assets 7,159.50 - 94,046,278 1,01,205.78 1,01,205.78
Financlal llabilities
Trade payables - . 1,281.07 1,181.07 1,281.07
Debt securities * . 11,717.74 11, 717.74 11,1774
Borrowings (other than debt securities)

' ' Rol1eie Thitnds 35,116.74
Other financial [iabilithes - - 560.01 560,01 560,01
Total financial Habilities - - 48,675.56 48,675.56 48,675.56
As at 31 March 2020
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,089.17 . A, 000,00 9,089.17 5,089 .17
Giank balances other than above - - 786,92 786,92 T86.92
Derivative financial instruments 128.89 - 128.89 128.89
Trade receivables . - 1,103.73 1,103.73 1,103.73
Investments 2,502,590 - 41.25 2,544,115 2,544.15
Loans . - 91,852.27 91,852.27 91,B52.27
Other financial assets . - 2,767.14 2.767.14 2,767.14
Total financial assets 7,720.56 = 1,00,551.31 1,08, 272,27 1,08,172.27
Financial liabilities
Trade payables . . 141,07 141.07 141.07
Debt securities . - 22,207.14 12,207.14 12,207.14
Borrowings {other than debt securities)

- 56,126.77 56,126.77 56.126.77

Depaosits . - 100,00 100.00 100.00
Other financial liabilities : - 1,354,560 1,354,56 1,354.56
Total financial llabdlities . - 79,929.54 79,919.54 79,929.54
As at 01 April 2019
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,594,590 - 7,504.90 7,594,590
Bank balances other than above - . a7, 04 447,04 447.04
Trade receivables . . 1,383.09 1,383.09 1,383.09
Investments 4.05 . 100,00 104.05 104.05
Loans - * 24, 104.92 24,104.92 24,104.92
Other financial assets - - 1.961.76 196176 1,961.76
Total financlal assets 7.598,95 - 217,996.81 35,595.75 35,595.75
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables - E B1.69 B2.69 B2.69
Debt securities . - 1,935.65 1,935.65 1.935.65
PO ke v ek e i) . . 9,626.96 9,628.96 9,628.96
Deposits . B T49.17 74917 T45.17
Other financial labitities . . 420,29 420,29 420,19
Total financial liabilities . . 12,817.25 11,817.25 12,817.25

Falr value measurement of financial assets and [labilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the Statement of Balance Shest are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy,

The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs Lo the measurement, as follows:
= Level 1) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Liabilithes

+ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are ohservable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly




The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of financlal assets measured at fair value as at March 31, 2021:

i

Fimancial am::l:l:nurod at fair 11 12 3 Total
Investments 1,511.25 3,511.25
The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of Tinancial assets measured at fair value as at March 31, 2020;

Pl “"“"l'“"'m'd W far Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Total
Investments 2,502,90 - 2,502.90
Derivatives . 126.89 128.89
The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of financial assets measured at fair value as at 1 April, 201%:

Financial .lnu::;::uurldat fair 1 : 3 Toral
Irvestmints 4.0% 4,05

There were no linancisl assets or financial labilities measured at fair value through OC) in the earlier years.

The carrying amount of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other current financial assets, borrowings, debt
securities, deposits, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities

af these instruments.

Management uses s best judigment in astimating the fair value of its financial instruments, However, there are mherent limitations in any estimation
technique, Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the
amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments

subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each year end.

The Company's foreign currency derfvative contracts are not traded in active markets, Fair valuation of such instruments are provided by the dealer

who are recognised banks and use widely acceptable technigues. The effects of non-observable inputs are not significant for foreign currency options,

Thene have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 categories during the year,




5t 5

Additional RBI disclosures from Motes 1 to 24 have been prepared as per RBI Circulars / Directives basis Ind-AS financial statements.

Schedule to the Balance sheet (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Liabilities side Amount Amount Amaunt Amount
outstanding overdue outstanding overdie
(1) Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company
Debentures :
@) |Secured 11,717.74 - 12,207.14
Unsecured = S H
[b)  |Deferred Credits - .
i) Term Loans 20,415.51 33,156.27|
(d) __[inter-corporate loans and borrowing - 100.00
{el Commercial Paper - *
if} Public Deposits - -
[[1] Bank Owverdraft 0.29 - 7.893.32
{f) Other Loans (External Commercial Borrowings) 14,700, 94 15,077.18
[F4] Break-up of (1){f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
(&) In the form of Unsecured debentunes -
(1] In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where =
(&) Other public deposits
Assets side March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
{3)  |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than
these included in (4) below]
(a) _|Secured = :
(b}  |Unsecured f4,114_48 91,852.27
{4)  |Bresk up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting
Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
B |ia) Financial lease -
{bj Operating lease
Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtoss ;
i |{a) Assets on hire
[L1] Repossessed Assets -
Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
LLLLI T[] Loans where assets hiave been repossessed -
(k) Loans other than {a) above
(5) Break-up of Investments
Current Investments
|Quoted
Shares
(i1 |{a) Equity
1 (b) Preference
(i} Debentures and Bonds - -
(i} Units of mutual funds 3,511,325 2,502.90
(vl |Government Securities - -
(v} Others (please specify)
Unguoted
Shares
(i) {a) Equity - o
2 {b) Preference - N
(i} Debentures and Boands - 41.25
(i) |Units of mutual funds - -
(v |Government Securities

v) Others iplease speciiy)




Long Term Investments

Querted
Share
() a) Equity -
(b} Preference %
(it} __|Debentures and Bonds =
(i) |Units of mutual fends -

{ivl _|Government Securities

iv)  [Others (please specify)

Unguoted
Shares

i [{a) Equity s

(B) Preference -

() |Debentures and Bonds

{fii] _ [Units of mutual funds

(v} |Government Securities

v]  |Others - Fixed Deposit

(6)  |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above :
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total
Related Parthes **
fa) Subsidiaries
1 (b} |Companies in the .
SAME Group
ic} Other related parties - -
2 Other than related parties G4, 114.48 8, 114.48
Total
i Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term) in shares and securities (both
lquoted and unguoted) :
Category Market Book Value
WValue / Break up (Met of
or falr value or Provisions)
HAW
1 |Related Parties **
(@) |subsidiaries = 7
{b)  |Companies in the same group
{ch Other related parties - .
2 Other than related parties 3,511.25 3.511.25
Total
(8)  |Other information
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gross Non-Performing Assets
[} {a) _ |Related parties - -
(b} |Other than related parties 4,710.28) 3,433.24
Het Non-Performing Assets
(fi) (a) Related parties - -
(b} |Other than related parties 1,238.12 922,34

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt




Capital to Risk Ascets Ratio

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

CRAR %

AR - Ther | Capital (5]

61 48%

27.04%

CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%)

1.12%]

0.25%

Amicunt of subordinated debt ratsed as Tier-ll Capital

Amount rasiod by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

Invastmients

Particulars

Mareh 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

1) Yalue of Investments

11 Gross value of imvestmenty

- In India

3,511.25

2,544.15

- Dutside Indin

{if} Prowisions for deprociation on imestments

- b Incha

- Outsicle India

(15 Mt value of investments

- In India

2,544.15

- Outside India

3,511.3%

2} Movement of provisions held towards depreciatien on investments

1) Opening balance

i) Add: Prowision made during the year

i) Less: Write-of ! fwrite back of excess provision diring the year

) Closing batance

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020 |

i1y
[ unsecured advances

(12) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Rating Agency

Programme

Ratings assigned

Migration during

thie year

Term loans from banks

BB8- (Stable)

Cash Crodit from banks

HB- (Stable)

Working Capital Demand Loan

BBE- (Stable)

Commarcial Papers

Ad

il

Infomerics Ratings

secured NCDs under private

insue

BEB with Pasitive Qutlook

Hil

{13) Provisions and Contingencles

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

|Provision for depreciation on Investment

|Provision non par W assets’

3 AT2AG

2,510.90

Provision for standard assets™

2,026.95

3,267.59

Provision towards income tax

1,028.15

2,221,19

Provision for compensabed absences

29.63

11.92

Provision for gratuity

48,43

18,23

* reprosents provision an stage 3 advances
** represents provision on stage | and stage 7 advancos

{14} Concentrations

I. Concentration of Advances

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Total Advances to twenty langest borrowers

120.28

38.02

Percentage of Advances of twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the Bank

0.04

il. Concentration of exposures

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Total exposure to twenty largest bormosers

84,04

38,02

barrowiers

Percentage of exposure of twenty largest bormowers to total exposure of the company on

0

1if. Concentration of NPA

Particulars

| March 11, 2021 [

March 31, 2020

Total Exposure to tep four NPA accounts

| 5.50 |

4,20

fv. Sector wise distribution of credit Impaired loans

Sector

sector

Percentage of Impairment loss to Total Advances in that

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Agriculture and allied activitics

MEME

Corporate borrowers

0.94%

0.94%




{15} Movement of credit impaired loans

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{i] Mot HPAS to Net Advances (%) 1.87% 0.57%
(i) Movement of NPAs [Gross)
[a) Opening balance 3,433.24 B5.97
b) Additions during the year 12,921,469 16,965.33
(€] Reductions during the pear 11,644,465 -13,818.08
{d) Closing balance 4,710,728 3,433.24
i) Mowvement of Het HPAs
() Dpening balance G22.34 36,33
(b} Additions during the year 7.260.10 5,907.82
fe} Reduetions during the year : -
[d) Closing balance 1,238.12 9134
{Iv} Movement af Provision for NPAs
{a) Opening balance 2,510.90 49645
ib) Impairment less allowance made during the year 5,861,59 11,087.52
{c) Write offf write back of excess allowance -11,644.85 -13,618.06
id} Closing balance 147G 2,510.9%0
{16) Customer complaints
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(8] Mo, of complaints pending at the beginning of the year il ]
|16) No. of complaints recuived during the year 2.5 5
{¢) Ne. af during the year Ll 2,211 390
{d} No. of camplaints pending at the end of the year a n

(17) Disclosure of frauds as per Master Direction - Monitoring of Frawds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2014, circular no. REI/DNBS/2016-17/49 Master

Direction DNBS. PPD.O1/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29 September 2016

There were Mﬁmﬂfﬁﬁf"ﬂ{{‘*‘! fraud for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 3020,

dl e
A_. = 7 :_‘\
by il




{18) Derbvatives
Disclosure with respect to outstanding Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap (CCIRS)

b)

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap

Particulars March 31, 2021 [ March 31, 2020
i} The noticnal principal of swap agreements (USD) - 50,00
1) Losses which would be incurred if counter parties failed to fulfil their obligation under the

agresments

i) collateral required by the Bank upan entering Into swaps =
ivl concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps p

v fair value of the swap book 128,89
The nature and terms of the Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap

[ Mature [Terms Benchmark |
| thedging_|Furapean vanilla Option USDLIBOR |

Exchange Traded interest Rate Derivatives - Not applicable

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
Qualitative Disclosure

The Company's treasury function s responsible for company's access to financial markets, Further, treasury function monitors
and manages varicus risks relating to treasury operations of the company including currency risk, market sk and lguidity risk,
In course of managing these risks, the company may use various market instrsments as permissible for the company based on RBI
guidelines and internal approvals. Further, compliance with various policies and exposure limits s reviewed by the management.
The Company does not enter into any trade in financial instruments including derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes. The exposure as on March 31, 2020 s hedged exposure which is towards extermal commercial bormawings bormowed,

Quantitative Disclosure
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
St. No. Particulars Currency Interest Rate Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
" Derivatives (Motional Principal Amount) (USD} 90.00
a} For hedging® *
b) For trading 3
{ii} |Marked to Market Positions - - -
a Asset i+ - 176,89 :
b] Liability (-} * L
(i) |Credit Fxposure . -
{lv)  JUnhedged Exposure {LUSD) 200.00 110.00

* Pertairis to cross currency Interest rate swap
'."’ Q;F '.'I‘
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120) Disclosure as per Circular no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10,106/2019-20 issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) dated 13 March 2020

h 31, 2021
Asset classification as per RBI Norms | Asset classification Gross carrying Loss allowance as Net carrying Provisions as Difference
o5 per Ind AS 109 | amount as per Ind | required under Ind amount required under | between Ind AS and
AS AS 109 IRACP norms IRACP norms
{1 {2) 3 {4) (5] 1&] {7}
| (a} Parforming assets
Standard Stage 1B 2 G B03, 31 1,026.95 62,876.36 251.51 1,775 44
Subtotal &4, 503. 31 2,026.95 61,876.36 251.51 1,775.44
(b} Nan performing assets (NPA)
(i) Sulb standard Stage 3 4,710.28 147216 1,234.12 2,355,14 1,117.02
(i} Doubtful
Upto 1 viear Stage 1 -
1to 3 years Stage 1 - -
Maore than 3 years Stage 3 u
Subtotal for doubtful = - - -
{iii} Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal (b) 4,710.28 147116 1,238,12 2,355.14 1,117.02
Stage 1 & 2 - - . . -
(c) Other items Stage 3 %
‘Sulatotal . = ~ - -
Stage 1 & 2 4,5903.31 1,026.95 62,876, 36 231.51 1,775.44
Total (a+béc) Stge 3 4,710.28 3. 472,16 1,238.12 2,355.14 1,117.02
Subtotal 69,613.59 5. 499.11 64, 114.48 2,606.65 1,092,486
As on March 31, 2020
Asset classification as per RBI Norms | Asset classification | Gross carrying Loss allowance as | Net carrying Pravisions as Difference
as per Ind AS 109 | amount as per Ind | required under Ind amount required under | between ind AS and
AS A5 109 IRACP norms IRACP norms
i 2} (3) 14) 3} (6} (4]
| {2) Performing assets
S temalard Stage 1R 2 94.197.52 3,167 59 90,929.93 363,72 1,903.87
Subtatol B4, 197.52 3,267.59 90,919.93 J63.72 2,903.87
(b} Mon performing assets (NPA)
(i} Sieh stamdara Stage 3 3,433.24 2,510.90 912,34 1,716.62 794.28
{11) Denabt fusl
| Upto 1 year Stage 3
1 to 3 years Stage 3 =
More than 3 years Stage 3 3 .
Subtatal for doubtful - - - - -
(i) Loss Stage 3 = - = - =
Subtotal {&! 3,433.24 2,510.90 921,34 1,716.62 794.28
|Stage 16 2 - . - - -
{c) Other items Stage 3
Subtotal . - : x -
Stage 1B 2 94,197.52 1,167.59 50,929.93 363.72 2,900.87
Tatal {asb+c) Stage 3 3,433.74 2,510.90 97234 1,716,462 794.28
Subtotal 97,630.76 5,778,49 91,852.27 2,080.34 3,698.15
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(24) Others

(a) Disclosure relating to Securitization
There are no such transactions during the current year and previous year

{b) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
There are no such transactions during the current year and previous year

{c) Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by applicable NBFCs
There are no such transactions during the current year and previous year

(d) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold - Mot Applicable
There are no such transactions during the current year and previous year

(e) Exposure to Real estate sector - Mot Applicable
There are no such transactions during the current year and previous year

(f) Exposure to Capital market - Mot Applicable
There are no such transactions during the current year and previous year

() Details of financing of parent company products - Nil
There are no such transactions during the current year and previous year

(h) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC - Nil
(i) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - None

(j) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

(k) Remuneration of non executive directors - Nil

() There are no prior period items in the current year . The financial statements for the current year have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Act, read with with paragraph 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). Refer Mote 2.1% on how the company adopted Ind AS. Subject to aforemention, there are no
other changes in the accounting policies.

{m) There is no postponement of revenue recognition during the year which is subjected to resolution of significant uncertainities,

(n) Draw Down from Reserves
There has been no draw down from reserves during the year

(o) Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
There are no overseas asset owned by the Company

(p) Off-balance Sheet 5PVs sponsored
There are no off balance sheet SPVs sponsored.




